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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEBNWmEDN

GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
hereby presents the audited consolidated annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2020 and
reports a consolidated profit after taxation attributable to
shareholders of the Company of HK$15,229,000 (2019:
HK$111,747,000) and basic earnings per share of 0.58 HK
cents (2019: 4.28 HK cents).

The Group recorded an improvement in the share of
the profit of an associate of the Group. The associate
is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai and the Group shared from such associate a
net profit of HK$53,841,000 for the year under review, an
increase of approximately 17.58% as compared with that
of HK$45,791,000 for the year 2019.

However, an operating loss of HK$35,553,000 was
reported for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (2019:
profit of HK$69,140,000). It was mainly attributable to a
significant drop in the results of the securities trading and
investment business of the Group in Hong Kong. As a
result of an unrealized loss on changes in fair value, it was
recorded a net loss on the trading securities investments
of HK$55,950,000 (2019: gain of HK$14,772,000). The
dividends received from the long-term equity investments
of the Group were reduced to HK$27,203,000 (2019:
HK$44,514,000). In addition, there was a segment loss
of the Group’s property development and investment
business in Shanghai of HK$462,000 (2019: HK$612,000)
though there was a slight improvement in the revenue and
gross profit.

As a result, there was a decrease of approximately 86.37%
in the consolidated profit after taxation attributable to
the shareholders of the Company for the year 2020 as
compared with that for the year 2019.

As at 31st December, 2020, the equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company was HK$2,536,254,000
(2019: HK$2,579,293,000) in total or approximately
HK$0.97 (2019: HK$0.99) per share.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of dividend for
the year ended 31st December, 2020 (2019: HK$0.04 per
share).
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

Property development and investment as well as securities
trading and investment were the principal activities of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2020.

The securities trading and investment in Hong Kong
contributed approximately 98.48% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year 2020 and
reported a segment loss of HK$28,825,000 (2019: profit
of HK$59,264,000). The segment revenue was principally
attributable to the gross proceeds from disposal of the
trading securities investments while dividend receipts
were the secondary source. The segment loss was mainly
resulted from recording an unrealized loss on changes in
fair value of the trading securities investments according
to the accounting standards adopted by the Group owing
to fluctuation of the global financial market.

Property development and investment in Shanghai
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries accounted for the
remaining approximately 1.52% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year under review. The
segment revenue was derived from sales and leasing of car
parking spaces and a segment loss of HK$462,000 (2019:
HK$612,000) was recorded.

The share of results of the associate of the Group engaged
in property development and investment in Shanghai was
HK$53,841,000 (2019: HK$45,791,000).

Property Development and Investment

Apart from the property development and investment
business in Shanghai, the Group holds an investment
property in Macau. No revenue was generated from the
property portfolio in Macau during the year under review.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENwWR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Rivera (Holdings) Limited
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Shanghai Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
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Zhangjiang
—> Micro-electronics Port
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Zhangjiang Tomson Garden
RISGERE

ZJ Legend
' RIIES

Development in
e Fengxian District, Shanghai
tEmHEBEZREEE

LBREEXEBRAA
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited)

Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited (“Boulevard
Real Estate”), a 93.53%-owned subsidiary of the Company,
holds around three hundred car parking spaces in its sole
residential development, namely Tomson Beautiful Space,
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in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
(“Zhangjiang Park”). For the year ended 31st December,
2020, operating revenue of Boulevard Real Estate was
derived solely from sales and leasing of the said car parking
spaces, which accounted for approximately 1.52% of the
Group’s gross proceeds from operations. Boulevard Real
Estate reported a profit before taxation of HK$3.52 million
for the year 2020 (2019: HK$3.41 million) after taking
account of its interest income.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
(“SZMP”), in which the Group holds 37.020% interests in
its registered capital, is principally engaged in residential,
office and commercial property development and
investment in Shanghai. SZMP derived its revenue for the
year under review mainly from leasing of the property
projects in Zhangjiang Park and sale proceeds of the car
parking spaces were the secondary source. To alleviate the
burden of the tenants under the impact of the outbreak
of COVID-19, SZMP offered a rental concessions plan
in the first half of 2020 for certain specified tenants of
its office and commercial buildings, especially the micro,
small and medium enterprises. On the other hand, there
was a significant increase in sale proceeds of the car
parking spaces. Hence, for the year ended 31st December,
2020, SZMP reported an increase in its net profit to
HK$145,517,000 (2019: HK$123,760,000) and the Group
shared a profit of HK$53,841,000 (2019: HK$45,791,000).
In addition, the Group received dividend (net of withholding
tax) of HK$40,309,000 from SZMP in the year 2020 (2019:
HK$44,907,000).

The carrying amount of the interest in SZMP of
HK$796,476,000 represented approximately 30.87% of
the Group’s total assets as at 31st December, 2020 and
the details of such interest is set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
under review on pages 123 to 125. Save as the proposed
transfer of approximately 10.503% interests in the registered
capital of SZMP held by the Group to Shanghai Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”),
which is a company established and listed in the Mainland
and currently holds 49.497% interests in SZMP, stated in
the paragraph headed “Privatisation Proposal” below, the
Group will continue to retain its equity investment in SZMP
as its principal long-term strategic investment in Shanghai
and SZMP will remain an associate of the Group should the
said disposal materialise.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port

Seven blocks of office buildings in Zhangjiang Micro-
electronics Port situated in Zhangjiang Park are retained for
leasing purpose. This project was the principal source of
revenue of SZMP for the year under review and accounted
for approximately 49.52% of the turnover of SZMP. It offers
a total rentable gross floor area of approximately 90,200
square meters for commercial and office purposes and
approximately 82% were let as at 31st December, 2020.

Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port

EIMETFE

RITIHEFE

U RRITERE 2R IME TS 2 E P QA KER
RBELHEARZ - ZBEAMETFBLARREE
FEZEEZRARER  (HREFBRAEERELY
49.52% o ZIEEIRMIEFERMAETRE 2 #
HEREEEBENAW200F K R_E-F
F+-A=+—HEHHH482% °
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Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

Concerning Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, a residential
development project in Zhangjiang Park, SZMP retains
residential gross floor area of approximately 65,400 square
meters for leasing and all the residential rentable rooms were
leased out as at 31st December, 2020. Two hundred-plus car
parking spaces were sold during the year under review and
SZMP now holds five hundred-plus car parking spaces for
sale. This project accounted for approximately 39.89% of the
turnover of SZMP for the year 2020.

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

RIEERE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

ZJ Legend

ZJ Legend, a commercial centre in Zhangjiang Park,
provides a total gross floor area of approximately 26,300
square meters for leasing purpose and an occupancy rate
of approximately 82% was recorded as at 31st December,
2020. The income generated from the commercial centre
accounted for approximately 9.97% of the turnover of
SZMP for the year under review. Food and beverage
outlets were the principal tenants of the commercial
centre, occupying approximately 51% of the leased area
while entertainment businesses ranked as the secondary
tenants, taking up approximately 28% of the leased area.

ZJ Legend

ETES

In addition, SZMP owns a land bank in Zhangjiang Park for
development of Phase 2 of the commercial centre. SZMP
has been granted permission to revise its development plan
of Phase 2 according to the revision of the zoning plan
of north western district of Zhangjiang Park approved by
the municipal government of Shanghai in 2017. Under the
proposed development plan, Phase 2 will be developed
as a composite project for office, commercial and cultural
purposes with a total gross floor area of approximately
60,900 square meters subject to payment of additional
land premium. SZMP has been in regular contact with the
government authorities and is monitoring policy development
so as to push ahead with the preparation works.

O  RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIJA &£ E & R A A
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If the said proposed transfer of around 10.503% interests in
SZMP held by the Group to Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is approved
by the shareholders of the Company, SZMP will become
majority-owned by Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. It is expected
that SZMP will enjoy the preferential policies of the local
government to facilitate and promote the redevelopment of ZJ
Legend (including the development of the Phase 2 thereof).

Development in Fengxian District, Shanghai

SZMP has developed a residential-cum-commercial project
in Fengxian District of Shanghai. All the residential units
of Tomson Ginkgo Garden have been sold and SZMP
now retains a commercial-cum-office building with a total
gross floor area of approximately 11,000 square meters.
SZMP has entered into a letter of intent for leasing the
commercial-cum-office building, however, it was cancelled
in early 2021. SZMP intends to lease out the commercial-
cum-office building as a whole and will actively solicit
appropriate tenants.

During the year under review, this project derived its
income solely from sales and leasing of car parking spaces
and accounted for approximately 0.62% of the turnover
of SZMP. Ten car parking spaces were sold in 2020 and
there are now one thousand two hundred-plus car parking
spaces retained for sale.

Development in Fengxian District, Shanghai

LETEREZREEE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Securities Trading and Investment

The Group holds various listed securities in Hong Kong
for trading and long-term investment purposes. In addition,
the Group has invested through a subsidiary in Shanghai
in various unlisted start-up partnerships and companies
as long-term equity investments. Securities trading and
investment was the principal source of gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year under review.

Securities held for Trading

All trading securities investments of the Group are listed in
Hong Kong. During the year 2020, revenue derived from
the securities investments held for trading accounted for
approximately 73.54% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations. The revenue was attributable to gross proceeds
from disposal of HK$63,880,000 and dividend receipts of
HK$16,328,000. Hence, a net realized gain of HK$15,994,000
(2019: HK$13,825,000) was generated. After taking account
of a net unrealized loss on changes in fair value of
HK$71,944,000 (2019: gain of HK$947,000) in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, a net loss on trading
securities investments of HK$55,950,000 was recorded for
the year under review (2019: net gain of HK$14,772,000).

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group had securities
investments held for trading of an aggregate fair value of
HK$225,909,000, representing approximately 8.76% of the
Group’s total assets. An analysis of the performance of the
trading securities investments of the Group during the year
under review by industry classification is set out below:

As at 31st December, 2020

HAFBEERRE

AEERAZEEELTREAIFEERERHR
B s AREEEERELET 2 —RWBER
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Iy &5 48 %863,880,0007%8 7T & % B A 16,328,0007%
7T o Bk Fia“iﬁwﬁ/ﬂéwgwooo/%m
(ZZ— 1% 113,825,000/ 7T) ° & T AR i A
SHEAEZATFEESMELE Z ARIEEIR
F BA71,944,00078 7T (ZF — JLF - W 25947,0007%
B REBEFERSHFERFREBEFHE
55,950,000/ 70 (ZZ —NF : Yz /F5814,772,000
/’%E)

RZEZZEF+_A=+—H TEEZFEHE
S5 IE N B 58 5225,909,0008 7T © (HAREH
BEENSTO% - REIBFERN  AEBZFE
BHERERTESEZRRASMEINGMT

For the year ended 31st December, 2020

R-ZB-EF+ZA=t-H BE-_Z-_FF+-HA=+-HALEE
Percentage of
total assets of Realized Unrealized Net
Fair value the Group gain (loss) gain (loss) gain
EEK AER (E#])
Industry Classification 1T¥£9 8 AFE BEEFIE EBEAKE (FR)UWSE W% F 5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER TER THER THER
Real estate investment  EHEREETES
trusts 16,514 0.640% 937 (11,705) (10,768
Financials — Banks TRE - |/ 147,429 5.714% 8,423 (37,751) (29,328)
Conglomerates GAETE 58,629 2.272% 4,900 (21,807) (16,907)
Consumer discretionary #Maﬁ WHETE 2,438 0.095% - (736) (736)
Properties and WEREE
construction 899 0.035% 1,156 55 1,211
Telecommunications EES - - 578 - 578
225,909 8.756% 15,994 (71,944) (55,950)
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There were no individual trading securities investments
with fair value representing 5% or more of the Group’s
total assets as at the end of the year under review. The
following equity investment is the most significant securities
investment held for trading of the Group and an analysis of
the performance of such investment during the year under
review is set out below:

As at 31st December, 2020
N-2-BF-B=t1-8

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENwWR DM

MEEANSFEIFREZAFEEAEERD
BFERBEEZ%IIA L - TIHREAKRER
AREHEIB2HEESFRE  ARZRERE
BEEZRROMEINWT:

For the year ended 31st December, 2020
BE-E-_EF+t-A=t-HLEE

Percentage of

total assets of Realized Unrealized
Fair value the Group gain loss Net loss
N3

Equities R &% AYE #EEFEIL CRBEKE XERER BEESE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TER

Bank of China Limited ~ HERTRHERDF

— H shares - Hix

(Stock Code: 3988) (B {5 5% : 3988) 114,901 4.453% 8,168 (29,484) (21,316)

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group held 43,359,000
H shares, representing 0.05% of the total H shares, of
Bank of China Limited at the historical investment cost
of HK$140.38 million. During the year under review, the
Group recognized dividend income of HK$8,168,000 from
the bank, which represented the realized gain on such
investment and accounted for approximately 7.49% of the
Group’s gross proceeds from operations. Bank of China
Limited is a commercial bank based in the Mainland and
is mainly engaged in the provision of banking and related
financial services, including commercial banking business,
investment banking business, insurance business, direct
investments and investment management businesses, fund
management business and aircraft leasing business. The
Group currently intends to retain its investment in the H
shares of Bank of China Limited to enjoy a stable dividend
income and long-term capital appreciation.

Long-term Equity Investments

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group held 247,300,000
shares, representing 12.547% interests in the total issued
shares, of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL’, Stock Code:
258), as a long-term investment and the fair value of such
investment amounted to HK$474,816,000, representing
approximately 18.40% of the Group’s total assets. The
historical investment cost amounted to HK$498.33 million.
TGL is a listed company in Hong Kong and is principally
engaged in property development and investment as

RIE-EF+-_A=+—H AEEHEAPEH
IR 1T A% 19 B IR A &) HA% f% 1943,359,0000% + 1k 7%
NAE EBHAE A 19 £490.05% » F AR E K AN B
140,380,000/ 70 - LD EEFE - AEEER K H
ZERTTZ IR BN A8,168,000/8 7T » BRI E 2
BERWE  GASEE 2 EE N BEELIT7.49% o
FEEITRODEBRARAE —RAIDR R AL ZE
¥R7T FEREROTEREENESBRSE &
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well as hospitality and leisure business in Shanghai. The
Group received an interim dividend from TGL for 2019
of HK$27,203,000 during the year under review (2019:
HK$44,514,000), which accounted for approximately
24.94% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations
and represented the realized gain on such investment.
Nevertheless, an unrealized loss on change in fair value
of the equity investment in TGL of HK$4.95 million was
charged to the investment revaluation reserve of the Group
in 2020 (2019: HK$66.77 million) in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards. The Group currently
intends to keep the equity investment in TGL as a long-
term investment. It is expected that the equity investment
in TGL will provide a steady dividend income and potential
capital appreciation in the future.

Boulevard Real Estate formed a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Shanghai for the purpose of investing in various unlisted
start-up partnerships and companies as long-term equity
investments. As at the end of the year under review,
the total fair value of these investments amounted to
HK$9,666,000, representing approximately 0.37% of the
Group’s total assets. No revenue has been generated
during the year under review (2019: Nil) and an unrealized
loss on changes in fair value of these equity investments of
HK$1.42 million was charged to the investment revaluation
reserve of the Group in 2020 (2019: HK$0.26 million) in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financing and Profitability

There was no change in the Group’s capital structure
during the year ended 31st December, 2020. The Group’s
operations and investments for the year under review were
mainly funded by its cash on hand and revenue from
operating and investing activities.

As at 31st December, 2020, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$1,004,355,000. During the
year under review, the Group generated a net cash inflow
of HK$80,711,000 from its investing activities. After taking
into account a net cash outflow of HK$65,793,000 from the
Group’s operating activities and the Company’s dividend
payment of HK$104,342,000, the net cash outflow of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2020 amounted
to HK$89,424,000 (2019: HK$220,365,000). The decrease
in cash balance in 2020 was mainly attributable to the
payment of final dividend of the Company and an increase
in trading securities investments in Hong Kong.
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The Group had no borrowing as at the end of the
reporting period (2019: Nil). Of the liabilities of the Group,
approximately 33.18% were payable within one year from
the end of the reporting period while the balance was
deferred tax liabilities related to undistributed earnings of
SZMP, the Group’s associate.

The Group provided an impairment loss on other receivable
of HK$10,953,000 during the year under review (2019: Nil)
as it is probable that the debtor may not be able to repay
the outstanding amount but the Group will take all feasible
legal action to enforce the repayment.

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group recorded a current
ratio of 107.41 times (2019: 119.61 times) and a gearing
ratio (being total liabilities to equity attributable to owners
of the Company) of 1.40% (2019: 1.34%). The drop in the
current ratio was mainly attributable to the payment of
final dividend of the Company and there was no significant
change in the gearing ratio during the year under review.

In addition, the Group had no capital commitment in
respect of expenditure on property development which
had been contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements for 2020 (2019: Nil).

For the year under review, the Group reported a return on
equity (net profit to the average equity, both attributable to
owners of the Company) of 0.60% (2019: 4.27%) owing to
a significant drop in the profit.

Charge on Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at
31st December, 2020 (2019: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Other than Hong Kong Dollar being the Group’s functional
currency, the transactions in the Mainland and Macau
are made in Renminbi and Macau Pataca respectively.
The Group’s assets and liabilities are predominantly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi
respectively. The liabilities are well covered by the assets.
Though the depreciation in value of Renminbi may have an
adverse impact on the Group’s results and net asset value,
the Group anticipates that the exchange risk exposure is
manageable.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st
December, 2020 (2019: Nil).

PRIVATISATION PROPOSAL

As disclosed in the announcement jointly issued
by Step Famous Investment Limited (the “Offeror”)
and the Company on 18th January, 2021 (the “Joint
Announcement”), a proposal for the privatisation of
the Company by the Offeror (the “Proposal”’) by way
of a scheme of arrangement under Section 673 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Scheme”) would be put forward to the
registered holders of the shares of the Company (other
than those held by the Offeror and its concert parties
(excluding Cosmos Success Development Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL)) (the “Scheme
Share(s)”). On 18th January, 2021, the Offeror entered into
a rollover agreement (the “Rollover Agreement”) with Best
Central Developments Limited (the “Rollover Shareholder”,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech),
pursuant to which, amongst others, the Offeror and the
Rollover Shareholder, both being substantial shareholders
of the Company, will remain as the shareholders of the
Company after the Scheme becoming effective, which
is subject to fulflment of the conditions of the Rollover
Agreement. In addition, there is a proposed transfer of
approximately 10.503% interests in the registered capital of
SZMP held by the Group to Zhangjiang Hi-Tech (the “SZMP
Transfer”). The arrangement between the Offeror and the
Rollover Shareholder under the Rollover Agreement and the
SZMP Transfer (collectively the “Special Deals”) constitute
special deals under Rule 25 of the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”).

The Proposal and the Scheme will become effective and
binding on the Company and all registered holders of
the Scheme Shares subject to the fulfiment or wavier (as
applicable) of the conditions of the Proposal as set out
in the section headed “Conditions of the Proposal” in the
Joint Announcement (the “Conditions”) including, inter alia,
the following conditions:

(@) the approval of the Scheme at a meeting of the
registered holders of the Scheme Shares to be
convened at the direction of the High Court of Hong
Kong (the “High Court”) (the “Court Meeting”);
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the passing of a special resolution at a general
meeting of the Company to be convened and to be
held immediately following the Court Meeting (the
“General Meeting”) to approve and give effect to
the Scheme, including the approval of the reduction
of the issued share capital of the Company by
cancelling and extinguishing the Scheme Shares
and the issue to the Offeror of such number of new
shares of the Company as is equal to the number of
the Scheme Shares cancelled;

(c) the sanction of the Scheme and the confirmation
of the reduction of the issued share capital of the
Company involved in the Scheme by the High Court;
and

(i) the receipt of an opinion from the Independent
Financial Adviser (as defined below) to the
Independent Board Committee (as defined below)
confirming that the Special Deals are fair and
reasonable as far as the shareholders of the
Company (other than the Offeror, its concert parties
and those who are involved and/or interested in the
Special Deals) (the “Independent Shareholders”) are
concerned; (i) the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the Independent Shareholders at the General
Meeting to approve the Special Deals; and (iii) the
grant of consent under Rule 25 of the Takeovers
Code from the Executive Director of the Corporate
Finance Division of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (or any delegate thereof)
in respect of the Special Deals.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the Scheme
Shares will be cancelled and the holders will be paid
HK$0.65 in cash for each Scheme Share. Share certificates
for the Scheme Shares will thereafter cease to have
effect as documents or evidence of title. The Company
will make an application for the listing of its shares to
be withdrawn from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in accordance with Rule
6.15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), subject to the
Scheme becoming effective, following the date on which
the Scheme becomes effective in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance. Subject to the requirements of
the Takeovers Code, the Proposal will lapse if any of the
Conditions has not been fulfilled or waived, as applicable,
on or before 31st December, 2021. Hence, the Proposal
may or may not be implemented. If the Scheme is not
approved or the Proposal otherwise lapses, the listing of
the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange will not
be withdrawn.
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An independent board committee of the Company (the
“Independent Board Committee”) comprising Mr Zhang
Hong Bin, Mr Tsang Kam Chuen and Mr Ng Chi Him,
being all the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company who are not involved in and/or interested
in the Proposal, the Scheme and the Special Deals,
has been established to make recommendation to the
relevant independent shareholders of the Company on the
Proposal, the Scheme and the Special Deals.

Altus Capital Limited (the “Independent Financial Adviser”),
a corporation licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), has been appointed as the
independent financial adviser to advise the Independent
Board Committee on the Proposal, the Scheme and the
Special Deals.

As announced by the Offeror and the Company on 5th
March, 2021, it is expected that (i) the scheme document
to be jointly issued by the Offeror and the Company to the
shareholders of the Company in relation to the Scheme will
be despatched on 7th June, 2021; (i) the Court Meeting
and the General Meeting will be held on 30th June, 2021;
and (i) the court hearing of the petition to sanction the
Scheme and to confirm the reduction of the share capital
of the Company involved in the Scheme will be held on
17th August, 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF OPERATIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company on 18th
January, 2021, the Company received a letter of the same
date from the Stock Exchange notifying the Company of
its decision that the Company has failed to carry out a
business with a sufficient level of operations and assets
of sufficient value to support its operations under Rule
13.24 of the Listing Rules to warrant the continued listing
of its shares (the “Decision”). Pursuant to Rule 2B.06(1) of
the Listing Rules, the Company has the right to refer the
Decision to the Listing Committee (as defined in the Listing
Rules) for review. In view of the Proposal, the Company
has decided not to make a request for the Decision to be
referred to the Listing Committee for review.
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In light of the Proposal, the Stock Exchange considers it
appropriate to delay the trading suspension requirement of
Rule 6.01(3) of the Listing Rules such that the trading of the
shares of the Company may continue whilst the Proposal is
underway. If the Proposal does not materialise for whatever
reasons, the Stock Exchange will consider an immediate
application of the trading suspension requirement of Rule
6.01(3) of the Listing Rules.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Other than the risk and uncertainties in relation to the
possible trading suspension of the Company’s shares as
stated above, the Group’s financial situation, operation
results and business prospects may be directly or indirectly
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties including
business risks, operational risks, financial risks and
changes of local laws and regulations in the jurisdictions
in which it operates. Information on the estimation
uncertainty, capital risk management and financial risks
management is respectively set out in Notes 4, 5 and 6(b)
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year under review on pages 97 to 105. Currency risk
to the cash and bank balances and listed equity securities
investments denominated in Renminbi, and equity price
risk exposed to the listed equity securities investments are
considered to be the principal factors affecting the Group’s
operation results and financial situation. The management
will continue to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging arrangement should the need arise. It will
also maintain the Group’s securities trading and investment
portfolio with different risks and closely monitor the price
changes. The Group expects to have sufficient funds to
meet its financial obligations when they fall due whilst it will
monitor any potential liquidity risk and will consider raising
bank loans when necessary.

PROSPECTS

Save for the intention of the Offeror after the Scheme
becoming effective, the Group will keep property
development and investment as well as securities trading
and investment as its principal operating activities. In
consideration of the Scheme which will be submitted
for the approval by the independent shareholders of the
Company and the sanction of the High Court in next few
months and the requirements of the Takeovers Code, the
Board will not explore any other investments to expand the
scopes of business and investment portfolio of the Group
in the meantime.
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In regard to the property development and investment
business, residential properties for the middle-class and
commercial-cum-office properties in the Mainland are the
target business segments of the Group. Even if the SZMP
Transfer may be implemented, it is anticipated that the
property development and investment business of SZMP,
the Group’s associate, in Shanghai will remain one of
the principal sources of profit of the Group in 2021 and
the revenue will be predominantly generated from rental
income.

It is expected that the global and Hong Kong financial
markets will be noticeably fluctuant in 2021 under the
impact of the increasingly unstable global economic and
political situation as well as the outbreak of COVID-19. The
management will closely monitor market conditions and will
remain cautious in managing the Group’s securities trading
and investment portfolio so as to maximize its return to the
shareholders. The Group will focus on investment in listed
securities with high yield and liquidity for stable recurrent
income and long-term capital appreciation.

The Macau government announced in December
2013 revised planning directives under the “Urban
redevelopment programme of the Northern District of
Taipa Area” which covers the area in which the investment
property of the Group is located. A public consultation
on the draft of “The Master Plan of the Macao Special
Administrative Region (2020-2040)" was carried out by
the Macau government during early September to early
November 2020. The Group will monitor closely the
consultation conclusions and continue to explore and
evaluate various feasibility plans for its investment property
to realize its development potential at an opportune time.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has created disruptions and
uncertainties in economic and business activities of
populations worldwide and it is not expected to be at
an end shortly. The overall extent to which national and
global economies and financial markets would be adversely
impacted would be difficult to predict with any accuracy
at this stage. However, with the commencement of
vaccination all over the world, it is cautiously optimistic that
the situation will be under control and the economy will be
recovered gradually. The Group will continue to monitor the
situation closely and any financial impact on the operations
of the Group, should this happen, would be reflected in
the financial statements of the Group for the financial year
2021.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group engaged 4 salaried directors and employees
at its various offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Shanghai
as at 31st December, 2020. The total emoluments
of the Group for the year under review amounted to
HK$2,282,000 including retirement benefits scheme
contributions and directors’ emoluments. The Group has
always emphasized the importance of an efficient staff
management and incentive structure. Emoluments paid to
salaried staff and directors of the Group are determined
by reference to market terms, individual responsibilities
and performance. Discretionary bonus may be paid based
on individual contribution. Furthermore, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to which
directors and employees of the Group may be granted
options to subscribe for shares of the Company as a long-
term incentive.

In addition, the Group shared administrative resources with
a core connected person in Hong Kong on a cost basis
and details are shown in Note 23(b) to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year under review
on page 128.

The Board expressed its great sorrow for the passing
away of Mr Sit Hing Kwok, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, in January 2020 and wishes to
record its sincere gratitude to Mr Sit for his contribution to
the Company. On the other hand, the Board welcomes Mr
Tsang Kam Chuen in joining the Board as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
19th March, 2020.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express
its gratitude to all the staff members of the Group for their
loyalty and diligence over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Ying
Non-Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 12th March, 2021
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards and procedures which emphasize management
of high quality, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and complied with the code provisions
contained therein during the year 2020 and up to the date
of this Report, except that:

(@ in contrast to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code,
the non-executive Directors (whether independent or
not) of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement and
re-election at least once every three years at annual
general meetings of the Company pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Company;

(b) in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director of the Company appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company instead of being subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment as stipulated
in Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code. Such
arrangement not only complies with Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules but also streamlines the mechanism
of re-election of Directors so that both new Directors
appointed by the Board (either for filling a casual
vacancy or as an additional member) and existing
Directors retiring by rotation shall be subject to
re-election at the annual general meeting for the
relevant year. Furthermore, general meetings other
than annual general meetings will be reserved for
considering and approving notifiable/connected
transactions or other corporate actions under the
Listing Rules only, which should enhance efficiency
in procedures for corporate matters; and
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(c) the Company has not established a nomination
committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Code Provision
A.51 of the CG Code. This is because when
identifying individuals of appropriate calibre and
qualification to be Board members and when
assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, it is necessary to have a
thorough understanding of the structure, business
strategy and daily operation of the Company. The
participation of executive Directors during the
process is therefore indispensable. Accordingly, the
Board as a whole remains responsible for reviewing
its own structure, size and composition annually, and
also for considering the appointment of Directors
and nomination for re-election as well as assessing
the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board will always act in the best interests of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
as well as the shareholders. It is accountable to the
shareholders for the long-term performance of the Group,
while taking into consideration the interests of other
stakeholders.

The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial
to the Board’s performance and development of the
Company. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. It believes that diversity should be viewed from its
widest perspective. Accordingly, selection of candidates to
the Board is based on a range of measurable objectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and
qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
having due regard to the Company’s own business model
and specific needs from time to time and the ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
candidate will bring to the Board with due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board. During the year under
review, the Board has conducted an annual review of its
structure and composition at a regular meeting.
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As at the date of this Report, the Board is composed
of nine members, including a non-executive Chairman,
Madam Liu Ying; four executive Directors, Madam Hsu
Feng, Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr
Zhao Haisheng; one non-executive Director, Mr Sung Tze-
Chun; and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr
Zhang Hong Bin, Mr Tsang Kam Chuen and Mr Ng Chi Him.
All the Directors have signed letters of appointment with
the Company which set out the key terms and conditions
of their appointment. Biographical details of the Directors
and relevant relationships among them together with their
respective roles on the Board and its committees are set
out in the Profile of the Directors and Officers on pages
40 to 46. With the Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background and two out
of the nine Board members being female, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a diverse mix of skills,
experience and expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business
and development. In addition, over a half of the Board
members are non-executive (whether independent or not)
and it is considered that there is a balanced structure and
composition of the Board.

The existing Directors of the Company have disclosed to
the Company the offices held in other public companies
or organisations and the time involved and the Company
has received confirmations from each existing Director
that he/she has devoted sufficient time to perform his/her
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and has given
sufficient attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Company has also received an annual written
confirmation for the year 2020 from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications as required by the Listing Rules.
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Following the passing away of Mr Sit Hing Kwok, who was
an independent non-executive Director of the Company,
a member of the audit committee of the Board (the
“Audit Committee”) and the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”),
on 16th January, 2020 until the appointment of Mr Tsang
Kam Chuen as the said posts by the Board with effect
from 19th March, 2020, () the number of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company was below the
minimum number of three prescribed under Rule 3.10(1)
of the Listing Rules; (i) the number of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company was below
the requirement under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
pursuant to which the independent non-executive directors
must represent at least one-third of the board; (i) the
number of members of the Audit Committee was below
a minimum of three members prescribed under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and the relevant terms of reference of
the Company; and (iv) the absence of a chairman of the
Remuneration Committee did not satisfy the requirements
under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
terms of reference of the Company, pursuant to which
such committee must be chaired by an independent non-
executive director.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has met the
requirements under Chapter 3 of the Listing Rules in
relation to independent non-executive directors, audit
committee and remuneration committee throughout the
year ended 31st December, 2020.

The Board, led by the Chairman, has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering formulation of
corporate strategy, approval of annual and interim results,
changes of members of the Board and its committees,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters.
The non-executive Directors have contributed valuable
independent views and proposals for the Board’s
deliberation and decisions. The Board has established
an executive committee, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee (collectively the “Committees”)
with clear written terms of reference to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing
the Board’s responsibilities. The Committees have to
report regularly to the Board on their decisions and
recommendations.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the management, who
provides support to the Board in the setting of overall
strategic direction, long-term objectives and business
plans of the Group. Both the Board and the management
have clearly defined authorities and responsibilities under
various risk management, internal control and check-and-
balance mechanisms. The management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the
Board and the Committees and assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operation of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and
as and when required. Sufficient notices are given to
all Directors at least 14 days before the regular Board
meetings and all Directors are consulted as to whether to
include any matters in the agenda. Agenda together with
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in
a timely manner before the day of meeting. Drafts and
final versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for
comment and record respectively. During the year 2020,
four regular Board meetings were held. Besides, the non-
executive Chairman of the Board had an annual meeting
in 2020 for exchange of opinions with all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company without the other
Directors present.

All members of the Board have been provided with
monthly management updates to keep them up-to-date
with material developments of the Group’s operations,
performance, financial position and prospects. The Board
has agreed on a procedure to enable the Directors to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to assist them
to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of
the discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards
of corporate governance best suited to the needs and
interests of the Group. Good corporate governance is
crucial to an orderly and effective operational system,
which will enhance operational efficiencies, thereby
bolstering shareholders’ value. The Board is responsible
for the corporate governance functions. During the year
ended 31st December, 2020, the Board has discharged
the following corporate governance duties:

(@ review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  review, monitor and revise as appropriate the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, including reviewing
and revising the provisions of the codes on risk
management and internal control of the Group;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s code of
practice for securities transactions by the Directors
and relevant employees (the “Code of Practice
for Securities Transactions”) and guidelines
on arrangements for raising concerns about
improprieties;

(d) review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code and relevant disclosure in
interim and annual reports; and

(e) arrange seminars and briefings to the Directors,
and review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors, details of
which are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’
Induction and Continuous Professional Development”
in this Report.

Executive Committee

The Company has not appointed a chief executive but
the Board has established an executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) with written terms of reference
since August 2005 and the Chairman of the Board does
not act as a member. There is a segregation of duties
between the Chairman of the Board for leadership and
management of the Board and the Executive Committee
which may convene meetings as it considers necessary for
dealing with the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business.
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The Executive Committee is composed of all the executive
Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Zhao
Haisheng. Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the
Executive Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board in March 2012 with specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.
During the year 2020, the Remuneration Committee was
composed of all the then independent non-executive
Directors of the Company and a non-executive Director
of the Company. Subsequent to the passing away of Mr
Sit Hing Kwok on 16th January, 2020, Mr Tsang Kam
Chuen had been appointed to act as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 19th March,
2020. After that and up to the date of this Report, Mr
Zhang Hong Bin, Mr Tsang Kam Chuen and Mr Ng Chi Him,
being all the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company, and Mr Sung Tze-Chun, a non-executive Director
of the Company, have been members of the Remuneration
Committee and Mr Tsang has been the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration, to determine the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management of the Company and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors of the Company. The remuneration
of any member of the Remuneration Committee shall be
determined by the Board.

Two Remuneration Committee’s meetings were held during
2020 for considering and making recommendation to the
Board for determining the remuneration of a nominated
independent non-executive Director of the Company
and for an annual review of the remuneration policy and
packages for all the Directors and senior management of
the Company.

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors and senior
management of the Company for the year ended 31st
December, 2020 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 118 to 120.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in April 1999 by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. During the
year 2020, the Audit Committee was composed of all the
then independent non-executive Directors of the Company.
Subsequent to the passing away of Mr Sit Hing Kwok
on 16th January, 2020, Mr Tsang Kam Chuen had been
appointed to act as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company and a member of the Audit Committee
with effect from 19th March, 2020. After that and up to
the date of this Report, Mr Zhang Hong Bin, Mr Tsang
Kam Chuen and Mr Ng Chi Him have been members of
the Audit Committee. Mr Zhang Hong Bin who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as
required by the Listing Rules is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is
required to review the Company’s financial information,
to monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company, to review the Company’s financial controls
as well as the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

During the year 2020, in accordance with its terms of
reference and under the authorization of the Board, the
Audit Committee held three meetings for reviewing the
interim and annual financial statements as well as the
accounting and financial reporting matters of the Group,
reviewing the internal audit report of the Group for 2020,
evaluating the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and the significant risks faced by
the Group, reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness
and resource adequacy of internal audit function of the
Company, reviewing arrangements for raising concerns
about improprieties and considering the engagement and
scope of services of the Auditor.

The Audit Committee concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and the
internal audit function of the Company were implemented
effectively in 2020. The Audit Committee was satisfied
with related resources of the internal audit function and
the resources, staff qualifications and experience, and
training programmes and related budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as the
implementation, application and effectiveness of the policy
on arrangements for raising concerns about improprieties.
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In March 2021, the Audit Committee held a meeting to
review the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for 2020 for submission to the Board for approval. It also
recommended the Board to propose the re-appointment of
the Auditor at the annual general meeting of the Company
for 2021 (the “2021 AGM”).

Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting,
regular meetings of the Board and meetings of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee held during
the year ended 31st December, 2020 is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

BHE/STHNEEHUE
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee

Name of Directors BN RRAE EER ¥FMEEE ERZEE
Non-Executive Chairman FETER
Madam Liu Ying 2 Bix 1/1 44 NATER  NATEA

(Chairman of the Board) (EZFTE)
Executive Directors BTES
Madam Hsu Feng Wzt 1/1 44 NATEA  NATEA
Mr Albert Tong % FR%E 1/1 44 NATEA  NATEA
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles mIELE 1/1 44 NATEA  NATEA
Mr Zhao Haisheng BEELE 1/1 44 NATEA  NATEA
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun ROEBLE 11 4/4 22 NATER
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr Zhang Hong Bin ERWEE 11 4/4 2/2 3/3

(Chairman of Audit Committee) (BERZESHE)
Mr Tsang Kam Chuen LEREE 1/1 3/3 1/1 2/2

(Chairman of Remuneration (FHWNZES+E)

Committee)
(appointed on 19th March, 2020) (R-F-FF
=A 7% HEZH)

Mr Ng Chi Him REFEE 1/1 4/4 2/2 3/3
Mr Sit Hing Kwok EEE LS NATER  NATEA NATEA NATER

(former Chairman of Remuneration — (Ai{L#MZE & £ &)
Committee)
(deceased on 16th January, 2020)  (RZE-FF

—A+NAEL)
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors could be elected by the Company
or appointed by the Board. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and the retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code and
the Board is responsible for reviewing its own structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience of its members), and identifying, selecting and
considering any appointment or re-appointment of its own
members. The Board is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has adopted a director nomination policy to set
out the approach to nominate candidates to the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

At a regular Board meeting held in March 2020, the Board
approved the appointment of Mr Tsang Kam Chuen as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee with effect from 19th March, 2020
after considering his independence, qualifications and
professional experience in the field of law.

Mr Ng Chi Him, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Mr Zhao
Haisheng and Mr Tsang Kam Chuen retired at the
Company’s annual general meeting for 2020, being
the next following annual general meeting after their
appointment, while Mr Albert Tong retired by rotation at
the meeting. All of them were re-elected as Directors at
the Company’s annual general meeting for 2020.

An annual review of the Board structure, size and
composition was made by the Board during the year under
review and the Board resolved to keep the structure and
composition of the Board unchanged.

Madam Liu Ying, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Zhang Hong
Bin shall retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM pursuant to
the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Having considered the selection criteria of the Company
including the review of the overall contribution and service
to the Company and a range of diversity perspectives
concerning, inter alia, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience and qualifications,
skills, knowledge and business experience of the retiring
directors, the Board recommends that Madam Liu Ying,
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Zhang Hong Bin, who, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, be re-elected as
Directors at the 2021 AGM.

Committees relating to
the Privatisation Proposal

As reported in the paragraph headed “Privatisation
Proposal” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 15 to 17, a proposal for the privatisation
of the Company by Step Famous Investment Limited
(the “Offeror”) (the “Proposal”) by way of a scheme
of arrangement under Section 673 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Scheme”) would be put forward to the relevant
shareholders of the Company. In addition, there are an
arrangement under a rollover agreement made between the
Offeror and Best Central Developments Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) and
a proposed transfer of approximately 10.503% interests
in the registered capital of Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-
electronics Port Co. Ltd. held by the Group to Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech (collectively the “Special Deals”).

In this connection, the Board established an independent
board committee (the “Independent Board Committee”) on
18th January, 2021, comprising all the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company who are not involved
in and/or interested in the Proposal, the Scheme and the
Special Deals, namely Mr Zhang Hong Bin, Mr Tsang Kam
Chuen and Mr Ng Chi Him, to make recommendation to
the independent shareholders of the Company in relation
to the Proposal, the Scheme and the Special Deals. The
Independent Board Committee appointed Altus Capital
Limited as the independent financial adviser in January
2021 to advise it in relation to the Proposal, the Scheme
and the Special Deals.

In addition, the Board formed a committee, comprising
three Directors of the Company, namely Mr Albert Tong, Mr
Tsang Kam Chuen and Mr Ng Chi Him, on 18th January,
2021 and the committee has been delegated to deal with
the day-to-day administration of matters relating to the
Scheme for and on behalf of the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors
of the Company is given a comprehensive orientation
package, including the latest information of the Group,
induction into their responsibilities and duties, terms of
reference of the relevant Committees and other related
regulatory requirements.

Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them
abreast of the latest developments in the legislative or
regulatory environment, the Directors are regularly provided
with updates and briefings on the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Circulars or
guidance notes issued by various regulatory authorities or
organizations, where appropriate, are given to the Directors
for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages
the Directors to enroll in a wide range of professional
development seminars and conferences. During the year
ended 31st December, 2020, the Company organized
three in-house seminars on areas of corporate governance,
business strategy and industry-related subjects so as to
help the Directors refresh their knowledge and skills.
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A summary of the continuous professional development REBZ T -TZF+-_A=+—HIFE EF
in which the Directors participated during the year ended FrREMIZEHZERREB/EN

31st December, 2020 is as follows:

Continuous Professional
Development

Type Subject

Name of Directors EENA BE £
Non-Executive Chairman FHITERE
Madam Liu Ying 2 it 1,2 B
Executive Directors HITES
Madam Hsu Feng % EzE 1,2 A, B
Mr Albert Tong & FR %A 1,2 A B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles mTREE 1, 2 A B
Mr Zhao Haisheng HEELE 1,2 A B
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr Sung Tze-Chun RKOE &£ 1, 2 A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FHITEZE
Mr Zhang Hong Bin BERMEE 1,2 A B
Mr Tsang Kam Chuen SREAE 1, 2 A, B

(appointed on 19th March, 2020) (RZF=ZFF

ZAF+NHAEZ(F)

Mr Ng Chi Him REHLEE 1,2 A B
Mr Sit Hing Kwok B L St A N/A 7~ 38 N/A 7~ 35 A

(deceased on 16th January, 2020) (R-ZZF-—ZFF

—H+NHEEH)

Types:

B

1: Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference or ~ 1:  HFEREEHRES 5 - B - 5@ him =2

forums

2. Reading relevant information and updates, and watching 2: [MEEABEERLEEFER  MBEERLEIER

training webcasts

Subjects:

A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group A HASEEBKEBEANEE

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates B: EE - RE  HMBEER—MREEBZEHER
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for
Securities Transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Other than Mr Sit Hing Kwok who passed away in mid-
January 2020, the Company has made specific enquiry of
all Directors of the Company in office during the year under
review and each of the Directors has confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and
the Code of Practice for Securities Transactions throughout
the year under review or since his appointment in 2020 (as
the case may be).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring
that proper risk management and internal control systems
are maintained within the Group and for overseeing the
effectiveness of these systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets against
misappropriation and to manage the operational risks.
The Company has adopted its own codes for itself and
its subsidiaries in respect of all material internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions since 2005. The codes on
risk management and internal control are reviewed regularly
and modified pursuant to operational requirements of the
Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are
intended to manage, not eliminate, significant risks of
failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, so they
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The operating units
of the Group, as the risk owners, go through the following
processes on an ongoing basis and report results to the
management:

(@ identify their own significant risks in the Group’s
operation environment and evaluate the impacts of
those risks on the Group’s business and financial
position;
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(b)  develop necessary measures to manage those risks;
and

() monitor and review the effectiveness of such

measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information as set out in the codes on risk
management and internal control to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information and the dissemination of such information is
efficiently and consistently made.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group at least once a year and the
Audit Committee held a meeting in 2020 for that purpose.
The Board, through the review of the Audit Committee,
considers that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were adequate and effectively implemented
and the Group complied with the provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code
and the Group’s codes on risk management and internal
control during the year ended 31st December, 2020.

An external service provider has been engaged for
providing internal audit services to the Group during the
year under review. The Board reviewed and approved, after
a review made by the Audit Committee, the internal audit
report of the Group for 2020.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the
Audit Committee, the internal audit function was effectively
implemented and adequately resourced with experienced
external service provider in 2020 and the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
related budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting functions are adequate.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they
are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2020, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; have
made judgments and estimates that were prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to
form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and their opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2020 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 69.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Auditor for the year
ended 31st December, 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$1,167,000 and HK$53,000 respectively. The non-audit
services provided during the year were taxation services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company has day-to-day
involvement and knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The
Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring board
procedures are followed and board proceedings are efficiently
and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for
apprising the Board of all applicable law, rules, regulations
and corporate governance developments. During the year
under review, the Company Secretary has taken relevant
professional training as required under the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders through various channels
including the Company’s annual general meetings.
In 2020, all the Board members for the time being
including, inter-alia, the Chairman of the Board and the
chairmen of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, attended the annual general meeting of the
Company and answered questions from the shareholders.
Representatives of the Auditor also attended that
meeting to answer questions about the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2019.

In order to further enhance communication with the
shareholders of the Company and enable the Company’s
shareholders to have timely and updated information of
the Group, the Company has set up its own website at
http://www.rivera.com.hk where corporate information, interim
and annual reports, environmental, social and governance
reports, announcements, circulars, business development and
other information of the Company are posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Calling a General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company holding at least 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings of the Company may request
the Board to call a general meeting. The request (a) must
contain the name(s) of the requisitionist(s), their contact
details and number of shares of the Company held by
them; (b) must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the general meeting; (c) must be signed by
the requisitionist(s); (d) must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12,
15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong (the “Registered Office”) for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company; and (e) if a special
resolution is to be proposed at the general meeting, must
include the text of the resolution and specify the intention
to propose the resolution as a special resolution.

The Directors must proceed to call a general meeting
within 21 days after the date of receipt of a valid request
(which has been duly verified by the share registrar of
the Company). If the Board does not duly call a general
meeting that must be held within 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting, the requisitionist(s) or
any of them representing more than one-half of their total
voting rights may themselves call a general meeting which
shall be held within 3 months after the date of deposit of
the request.

Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

(@  Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the
Company having a relevant right to vote, or at least
50 shareholders of the Company having the relevant
voting rights may:

(i) propose a resolution at an annual general
meeting at least 6 weeks before such meeting
or no later than the time at which the notice of
the meeting is given; or
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(i)  request the Company to circulate, to the
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of
not exceeding 1,000 words for either a matter
mentioned in a proposed resolution (if they
are entitled to vote on that resolution) or other
business to be dealt with at that meeting at
least 7 days before the meeting.

The duly signed request shall be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary of the Company within the above
prescribed timeline.

(b)  The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the
Company’s website at http:/www.rivera.com.hk.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the share registrar of the Company, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

To the extent that such information can be made available
to the public, shareholders may at any time put forward
enquiries to the Board through the Company Secretary of
the Company in writing by mail to the Registered Office or
by e-mail to ir@rivera.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant
to which the Company aims at providing stable and
sustainable returns to the shareholders of the Company.
The dividend payout ratio shall be determined or
recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operation performance, business development
plan, consolidated financial results, liquidity position and
indebtedness, capital and investment requirements and
any other factors that the Board may deem relevant,
and subject to the statutory and regulatory restrictions
under Hong Kong laws and the Company’s Articles of
Association. Besides, no dividend would be payable except
out of the profits of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31st December, 2020
and up to the date of this Report.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being
of the society. During the year under review, the Group
made charitable donations to international charitable
organizations, namely World Wide Fund for Nature Hong
Kong and Médecins Sans Frontieres, to support their
activities in saving endangered animals and their habitat
and conservation and education work, and their provision
of emergency medical assistance respectively.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Ying
Non-Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 12th March, 2021
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Madam Liu Ying, aged 47, has been appointed a non-
executive Director of the Company since December
2017 and has been elected as Chairman of the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) since January
2018.

Madam Liu holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree and a postgraduate degree in
Finance and qualified as a Senior Economist in the
Mainland. She has taken up the posts of vice president
and president of Suzhou Harmony Development Group
Co. Ltd., president of Suzhou Sungent Holding Group Co.
Ltd. and chairman of the board and president of Suzhou
Industrial Park Trirun Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.
successively. In addition, she has acted as a director and
general manager of Shanghai Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone
Group Co., Ltd. (/B9 aBEBRMDABRAT) formerly
known as EB/IERBRMEAEROERAA), a

company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Madam Liu had acted as the deputy secretary of the
party committee of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) since
September 2017 and subsequently became the secretary
of the party committee of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in September
2018. She was elected as director and vice chairman of the
board of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and was appointed as legal
representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in December 2017.
She was elected as chairman of the board of Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech in September 2018 and then ceased to act as vice
chairman. She was the general manager of Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech during the period from October 2017 to September
2018, and discharged the duties of the general manager
until October 2019. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and one of the
substantial shareholders of the Company, and Mr Zhao
Haisheng, an executive Director of the Company, is the
deputy general manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EERGRITBRAEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 70, has been appointed a
Director of the Company since January 1990 and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Board since
August 2005. She is now an executive Director of the
Company and has been appointed a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company since December 2003.
She has over 10 years’ experience in film production,
and in property development and investment as well as
retail industry in Taiwan, and has been engaged in the
property development, hospitality and leisure business in
the Mainland for nearly 30 years. She is also the Honorary
Consul of the Principality of Monaco in Shanghai.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles, executive Directors and shareholders of
the Company. All of them act as directors of Step Famous
Investment Limited (the “Offeror”) and executive directors
of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL’). The Offeror is one of
the substantial shareholders of the Company while TGL is
a listed company in Hong Kong and a shareholder of the
Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). Madam Hsu is a controlling
shareholder of the Offeror. In addition, she is the chairman
of the board, managing director and controlling shareholder
of TGL.

As reported in the paragraph headed “Privatisation
Proposal” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 15 to 17, a proposal for the privatisation of
the Company by the Offeror (the “Proposal”) by way
of a scheme of arrangement under Section 673 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Scheme”) would be put forward to registered
holders of the shares of the Company (other than those
held by the Offeror and its concert parties excluding
Cosmos Success Development Limited (“Cosmos
Success”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL)).
In addition, the Offeror and Best Central Developments
Limited (the “Rollover Shareholder”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, entered into a
rollover agreement (the “Rollover Agreement”) on 18th
January, 2021. Pursuant to the Rollover Agreement,
the Offeror and the Rollover Shareholder will remain as
shareholders of the Company after the Scheme becoming
effective. In relation to the Proposal, pursuant to the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers
Code”), Madam Hsu is acting in concert with Mr Albert
Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and she is presumed
to be acting in concert with the Offeror, TGL and Cosmos
Success by virtue of the Offeror and TGL being controlled
by her and her close relatives. She is also acting in concert
with Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and the Rollover Shareholder by
virtue of the arrangement under the Rollover Agreement.
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As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant
to the SFO, Madam Hsu is interested and deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 969,733,376 issued shares
of the Company.

Mr Albert Tong, aged 38, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a director of a
number of its subsidiaries since March 2001. He has also
been appointed a member of the executive committee of
the Board since August 2005.

Mr Albert Tong is an executive director and vice-chairman
of the board of TGL, and has joined that group since
March 2001. He has actively participated in business
development, corporate management, property trading and
securities investment during past two decades.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and a younger brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company. All
of them also act as directors of the Offeror and executive
directors of TGL. He is also a substantial shareholder of
the Offeror and TGL.

In relation to the Proposal, pursuant to the Takeovers
Code, he is acting in concert with Madam Hsu Feng and
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and he is presumed to be acting
in concert with the Offeror, TGL and Cosmos Success,
by virtue of the Offeror and TGL being controlled by him
and his close relatives. He is also acting in concert with
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and the Rollover Shareholder by virtue
of the arrangement under the Rollover Agreement.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant
to the SFO, Mr Albert Tong holds a personal interest in
103,210,000 issued shares of the Company.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EERGRITBRAEEN

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (“Mr Charles Tong”), aged 40,
has been appointed an executive Director of the Company
and a member of the executive committee of the Board
since August 2019. He has acted as a director and general
manager of the subsidiaries of the Company in Shanghai
successively (as the case may be) since 2003.

Mr Charles Tong is an executive director and vice-chairman
of the board of TGL, and has joined that group since
December 2000 for participating in property trading and
business management in the Mainland. He now principally
engages in property development and trading business in
the Mainland.

In addition, Mr Charles Tong was a member of the 13th
Tianjin  Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference during the period from
January 2013 to January 2018.

Mr Charles Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, an executive
director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
the elder brother of Mr Albert Tong, an executive director
and a shareholder of the Company. All of them also act as
directors of the Offeror and executive directors of TGL. He
is also a substantial shareholder of the Offeror and TGL.

In relation to the Proposal, pursuant to the Takeovers Code,
he is acting in concert with Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert
Tong and he is presumed to be acting in concert with the
Offeror, TGL and Cosmos Success, by virtue of the Offeror
and TGL being controlled by him and his close relatives. He
is also acting in concert with Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and the
Rollover Shareholder by virtue of the arrangement under
the Rollover Agreement.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant
to the SFO, Mr Charles Tong holds a personal interest in
103,210,000 issued shares of the Company.

Mr Zhao Haisheng, aged 44, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the
executive committee of the Board since August 2019. He
has become a director of subsidiaries of the Company in
Shanghai since May 2019.

Mr Zhao holds a bachelor’s degree in Accounting and a
Master of Professional Accounting degree. He also qualified
as an Accountant in the Mainland and is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
over 10 years’ experience in accounting and has engaged
in jobs relating to financial and investment aspects for
around 10 years.
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Mr Zhao joined Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd., a
substantial shareholder of the Company and a controlling
shareholder of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, in September 2006
and worked in Financial Management Department. He was
subsequently transferred to Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in March
2015 to act as the general manager of former Real Estate
Fund Department. He has acted as the general manager
of Strategic Development Department of Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech during the period from February 2019 to January
2021. He has been appointed a deputy general manager
of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech on 13th January, 2021. Madam Liu
Ying, the non-executive Chairman of the Board, is the
chairman of the board, secretary of the party committee
and legal representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Sung Tze-Chun, aged 70, has been appointed a
non-executive Director of the Company since January 2006
and a member of the remuneration committee of the Board
since March 2012. He was an executive Director of the
Company until December 20083.

He holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree and
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr Sung has about 20 years’ experience in retail, property
development and marketing in Taiwan and has about 25
years’ experience in financial analysis and management.
He has taken part in business development, corporate
management and property development in the Mainland
and Hong Kong and has provided consultancy services on
business and investment management in Taiwan. He also
acted as the general consultant of the group operation
committee of Yungtay Engineering Co., Ltd. (@ company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange) during the period
from September 2010 to February 2013 and a director of
its subsidiary, 7k X & (FF .)ﬁﬁﬁ A (formerly known
as /B RKEHRMEER AT, during the period from
September 2010 to July 2013. Mr Sung is a consultant of
TGL.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EERGRITBRAEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Zhang Hong Bin, aged 47, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board since
April 2005, and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Board since March 2012.

Mr Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics and
a Master of Professional Accounting degree. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and is also a qualified lawyer
in the Mainland. He is a financial controller of a company
engaged in property leasing and management in the
Mainland and has over 20 years’ experience in financial
management. He has been a student tutor of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics since 2017 and of
Shanghai Jiao Tong University since January 2019.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Zhang has been increased
from HK$132,000 to HK$134,400 with effect from 1st
January, 2021, which was approved by the Board, under
the authorization of the shareholders at the 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company and on recommendation
of the remuneration committee of the Board, with reference
to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Tsang Kam Chuen, aged 66, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member
of the audit committee of the Board since March 2020.

Mr Tsang qualified as fellow member of The Chartered
Institute of Legal Executives, England and Wales and in
Common Professional Examination of The Law Society of
England and Wales. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong,
United Kingdom, Australia and Singapore, and a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr Tsang has been practising as a solicitor for over 30
years and has mainly engaged in estate trust planning,
conveyancing practice, commercial and corporate matters
(including merger and acquisition, joint ventures, loans
financing and credit facilities), and legal practices in relation
to foreign investment in the Mainland. He has been the
founding partner of Tsang, Chan & Woo, Solicitors &
Notaries since 1992. He is also a full member of Society
of Trust and Estate Practitioners and a member of Probate
Committee of The Law Society of Hong Kong.
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The annual director’s fee of Mr Tsang has been increased
from HK$126,000 to HK$128,400 with effect from 1st
January, 2021, which was approved by the Board, under
the authorization of the shareholders at the 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company and on recommendation
of the remuneration committee of the Board, with reference
to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

Mr Ng Chi Him, aged 60, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and a
member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Board since July 2019.

Mr Ng holds a Bachelor of Laws degree and is a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong and has been practising
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 25 years. He has
practised as a partner of Edward Lau, Wong & Lou during
the period from February 2018 to September 2019 and is
a practising partner of Patrick Chu, Conti Wong Lawyers
LLP since 31st August, 2019.

The annual director’'s fee of Mr Ng has been increased
from HK$120,000 to HK$122,400 with effect from 1st
January, 2021, which was approved by the Board, under
the authorization of the shareholders at the 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company and on recommendation
of the remuneration committee of the Board, with reference
to his responsibilities and prevailing market conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 54, has been appointed the
Company Secretary of the Company since March 1998.
She attained a bachelor’s degree in Economics and a
master’s degree in Business Studies, and is an associate of
The Chartered Governance Institute established in England
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Wong Chi Keung, aged 44, has been appointed the
Chief Accountant of the Company since February 2018. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

EERBEE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present its Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2020 and the Independent Auditor’s
Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year were
property development and investment as well as securities
trading and investment.

During the year under review, the Company engaged
in investment holding and securities trading while the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are listed under Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 135 to 137.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s
business for the year ended 31st December, 2020, an
indication of the future development of the Group’s
business as well as an analysis of the Group’s principal
risks and uncertainties are set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 to 20. This discussion
forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and
regulations, and an account of the Group’s relationships
with its employees, customers and suppliers are set out
below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
December, 2020 and the Group’s financial position as at
the end thereof are set out on pages 70 to 137. An analysis
by operating segments and geographical location is set
out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 109 to 114.

As at the date of this Report, other than the proposed
privatisation of the Company and the decision of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
relation to Rule 13.24 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
as reported in the paragraphs headed “Privatisation
Proposal” and “Sufficiency of Operations” respectively in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 15 to
18, the Board is not aware of any important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the year
under review.
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DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2019: Nil)
and the Board does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (2019:
HK$0.04 per share).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled
for Wednesday, 30th June, 2021 (the “2021 AGM”). For
determining the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 24th June, 2021 to
Wednesday, 30th June, 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company (the
“Share(s)”) will be effected.

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 23rd June, 2021 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Other than the dividend income of HK$27,203,000
from equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, less than 30% of the gross
proceeds from operations and purchases of the Group for
the year under review was attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group
donated HK$10,000 for charitable causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group
wrote off assets of net book value of HK$1,000 while it
neither added nor disposed of any assets (2019: neither
added nor disposed of nor wrote off any assets).
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Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are
shown in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 121 and 122.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group,
for sale or investment purposes, is set out on page 138.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

There were no bank loans and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31st December, 2020.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time
during the year.

No interest expenses of the Group were capitalized during
the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2020, 2,608,546,511 Shares with no
par value were in issue and were fully paid, and the total
amount of share capital of the Company was approximately
HK$442,244,000. The Company did not issue any new
Shares or buy back any Shares during the year under
review.

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in
Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements on page
127.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year under review
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st
December, 2020 amounted to HK$855,278,000 (2019:
HK$1,015,351,000).

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are shown in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 73 and 134 respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out on
pages 142 and 143.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report
and those who were in office during the year under review
are:

Non-Executive Chairman
Madam Liu Ying

Executive Directors
Madam Hsu Feng

Mr Albert Tong

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles
Mr Zhao Haisheng

Non-Executive Director
Mr Sung Tze-Chun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Zhang Hong Bin
Mr Tsang Kam Chuen
(appointed on 19th March, 2020)
Mr Ng Chi Him
Mr Sit Hing Kwok
(deceased on 16th January, 2020)

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Report is shown on pages 40 to 46.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 13(a) to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 118 and 119.
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The emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company
were determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Committee”) and the fees of the non-executive
Directors of the Company (whether independent or not)
were fixed by the Board under the authorization of the
shareholders of the Company and on the recommendation
of the Committee.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
Articles 77 to 79 provide that at every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
nearest number to but not more than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election and
shall be eligible for re-election. In this connection, Madam
Liu Ying, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Zhang Hong Bin shall
retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company
is subject to separate resolutions to be approved by the
shareholders at the 2021 AGM and information of these
Directors will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to
be despatched to the shareholders together with the notice
of the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the 2021 AGM have an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the employing company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The persons who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31st
December, 2020 included Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert
Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Mr Zhao Haisheng, Mr
Zheng Gang, Mr Chen Xiaoshi, Ms Lu Ying, Ms Lee Yuen
Han, Mr Lau Che Kong, Spencer and Mr Yeung Kam Hoi.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), every Director of
the Company shall be indemnified by insurance out of the
funds of the Company against any liabilities which he/she
may incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are
not avoided by the Companies Ordinance. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2020, the interests and short
positions of the Directors of the Company in shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein (including interests and short
positions which they were taken to have under Section 344
of the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

(1) The Company

Ordinary Shares
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(1) ADR
EBER

Number of Shares

RAEE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors BEENS BAESR KBRS NAEE Hin
Madam Liu Ying 2 #gax Nil £ Nil £ NIl & ) Nil £
Madam Hsu Feng (B) %" Mzt B 317,178,162 (C)) Nil 8 652,555,214 (C)fii) (i) Nil 4
Mr Albert Tong (B) % FR%E B 103,210,000 (D) Nil £ Nil & (©)fi), (i) Nil £&
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (8] 5 F &% %% (B) 103,210,000 (£) Nil £ Nil & (C)fi), (i) Nil £&
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(2) The Company’s associated

corporation

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics
Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP”)

Registered capital

2 AT zHEEEE

FERIMEFHRERAT
(MEFBAT)
S E

Amount of registered capital of SZMP

EFBQREMERE
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors BEEnB PN ¥ RBEER DREE HittigE R
Madam Liu Ying 3 Bzt Nil £ Nil £ NIl & (F) Nil £
Madam Hsu Feng (8) & WzL B Nil £ Nil £ NIl & (G Nil £
Mr Albert Tong (B) B FREE B Nil £ Nil £ NI & (@ Nil £
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (8] 5 F &= %% (B) Nil £ Nil £& Nl & G Nil £

Notes:

(A)

A total of 779,955,407 issued Shares (being 29.900%
of the total number of issued Shares) were beneficially
held by Best Central Developments Limited (“Best
Central”). Best Central was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”).

Madam Liu Ying was the chairman of the board,
secretary of the party committee and legal
representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Madam Hsu Feng is mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr
Tong Chi Kar Charles.

Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles were directors of Step Famous Investment
Limited (“Step Famous”) and held an interest in 66%,
17% and 17% of the issued shares of Step Famous
respectively.

In addition, Madam Hsu Feng entirely controlled the
exercise of 33.5% of voting power at general meetings
of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL’) while Mr Albert
Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were substantial
shareholders of TGL. Madam Hsu was the chairman
of the board and managing director of TGL while Mr
Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were the vice-
chairmen of the board of TGL.
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Madam Hsu Feng was interested and deemed to
be interested in an aggregate of 969,733,376 issued
Shares (being 37.175% of the total number of issued
Shares) pursuant to the SFO in the following ways:

(i) Madam Hsu held in her capacity as a beneficial
owner an interest in 317,178,162 issued Shares
(being 12.159% of the total number of issued
Shares);

(if) A total of 396,878,888 issued Shares (being
156.215% of the total number of issued Shares)
were beneficially held by Step Famous. By virtue
of her beneficial interest in Step Famous, Madam
Hsu was deemed to be interested in these Shares
through a corporation controlled by her; and

(i) A total of 255,676,326 issued Shares (being
9.801% of the total number of issued Shares)
were beneficially held by Cosmos Success
Development Limited (“Cosmos Success”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL. By virtue of
her beneficial interest in TGL, Madam Hsu was
deemed to have an interest in these Shares
through a corporation controlled by her.

Mr Albert Tong held in his capacity as a beneficial owner
an interest in 103,210,000 issued Shares (being 3.956%
of the total number of issued Shares).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a
beneficial owner an interest in 103,210,000 issued
Shares (being 3.956% of the total number of issued
Shares).

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech held an interest of RMB183.55
million (being 49.497%) in the registered capital of
SZMP.

Madam Liu Ying was the chairman of the board,
secretary of the party committee and legal
representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

TGL held an interest of RMB50 million (being 13.483%)
in the registered capital of SZMP through its wholly-
owned subsidiary.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company and their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, debentures and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31st December, 2020, which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein (including interests or short positions
which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the
SFO) or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme,
there were no options granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31st December, 2020, nor
was there any option outstanding at the beginning or at
the end of the year.

The major terms of the 2012 Scheme are as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Participants
The participants of the 2012 Scheme include, inter alia:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity, including any executive director
of any of these entities; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or

(i) any customer of or supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(iv) any adviser or consultant of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or

(vy any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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Maximum number of Shares
available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme must
not exceed 260,854,651 Shares, being 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this Report,
unless shareholders’ approval of the Company has been
obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant of option
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of
grant (the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant of options
to a participant would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant to be in excess of
the Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company
with such participant and his or her associates abstaining
from voting.

Exercise period of options

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not be more than 10
years commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Minimum holding period of an option
before exercise

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of
the relevant options, there is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.
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Acceptance of an option

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer
is made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of a consideration for the
grant thereof.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option
that may be granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of the option, which must be a business day;
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option.

Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective till 31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such
valid period, no further options will be offered or granted
but in all other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year
nor at the end of the year ended 31st December, 2020,
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

The following Directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in business which may compete or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, other than that business where the Directors
have been appointed/were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or the Group,
pursuant to the Listing Rules:

(i) Madam Liu Ying is the chairman of the board,
secretary of the party committee and legal
representative of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech together with its subsidiaries and associates
have participated in property development and
investment in the Mainland, including, inter alia,
in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong New Area
(“Zhangjiang Park”) in Shanghai; and

(i)  Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of board and
managing director as well as controlling shareholder
of TGL. Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles
are the vice-chairmen of the board and substantial
shareholders of TGL. TGL has through its subsidiaries
taken part in property development and investment
in the Mainland, mainly in Pudong New Area of
Shanghai, as well as in Macau.

Property development and investment is one of the
principal activities of the Group. The Company participates
in property development and investment in the Zhangjiang
Park and Fengxian District of Shanghai through its
subsidiaries and an associated company. Accordingly, the
business of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and TGL (collectively the
“Potential Competitors”) in the property sector in Shanghai
(the “Excluded Business”) may potentially compete with the
Group’s business. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a listed company
in Shanghai and TGL is a listed company in Hong Kong.
The Group’s business and the Excluded Business are
managed by independent management and administration
respectively. Besides, the Board is independent of the
boards of directors of the Potential Competitors and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
assist in monitoring the operation of the Group. The
Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at an arm’s length from, the Excluded
Business.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company or any entity connected with him (within the
meaning of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered
into during the year ended 31st December, 2020 or subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the arrangement for sharing of administrative
expense with TGL as disclosed in Note 23(b) to the
consolidated financial statements on page 128, no contracts
for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December, 2020.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF
Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong Kong. The scheme
is a defined contribution scheme effective from November
2002 and is funded by contributions from employer and
employees pursuant to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance.
Should the employer make any voluntary contributions for the
employees under the scheme, forfeited contributions in this
nature can be applied to reduce the amount of future voluntary
contributions payable by the employer.

The Group and its employees in Macau shall make contributions
of a fixed amount per quarter to the Social Security Fund under
the obligatory system pursuant to the laws of Macau.

In addition, the employees of the Group in the Mainland
are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the
local government. The employer and the employees are
obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of
the payroll under rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed
by the Group to the above schemes and charged to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to
HK$24,000 (2019: HK$36,000) and no contributions were
forfeited.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets
to the Group’s business. The Group provides competitive
remuneration package and makes regular review to attract
and motivate the employees.

The Group also understands that relationship is a
fundamental element of business. Therefore, the Group
maintains close relationship with its suppliers and
customers. To maintain the Group’s competitiveness, the
Group aims at delivering constantly quality products and
services to its customers. During the year ended 31st
December, 2020, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2020, the following shareholders
(other than the Directors of the Company) were interested,
directly or indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of
issued Shares and underlying shares of the Company and
those interests were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

(1) Substantial Shareholders of
the Company

BIRER

Name of shareholders
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Number of Shares held
(proportion to the number
of issued Shares)
FREERGEE
(HEBRTROHBZBD L)

Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangjiang Group”) (a)

Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) (a)

Step Famous Investment Limited

(“Step Famous”) (b) (T 2]) 1)

EBRI(EE)BRAR
(FIEE]) @

FERISHRERHME
B ER AT
(TR tn]) @

ERRERRAA

779,955,407 (29.90%)

779,955,407 (29.90%)

396,878,888  (15.21%)
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(2) Other Person (2 HAL
Number of Shares held
(proportion to the number
of issued Shares)
FEERGEE
Name of shareholder IR EERTROBEZED )
Tomson Group Limited mREBEABRAT 255,676,326 (9.80%)

(“TGL) (©) (ZEEED©

Notes: B &t -

(@) The references to 779,955,407 issued Shares were (a) #lt TR & 2 779,955,407 0% 2 3 17 IR {7 T #5
related to the same block of Shares which was B —H#A& 7 - ZF KD B Best Central B
beneficially held by Best Central. Best Central was a # 7 ° Best Central /& Shanghai (Z.J.) Hi-Tech
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai (Z.J.) Hi-Tech Park Park Limited ([Shanghai (ZJ)))Z & EWERQ
Limited (“Shanghai (Z.J)") which was in turn wholly A MEEBRRIBRNDEERR  RKIKHE
owned by Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in which Zhangjiang Bl BRI D 2 8150% # 7 ° E It - Best
Group held more than 50% interest. Therefore, Best Central * Shanghai (Z.J.) * R/ I MRT &
Central, Shanghai (Z.J.), Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and ERE(EARMEGRINDEEIERRES
Zhangjiang Group were interested or were taken to be ZERDEIER ©

interested in these Shares pursuant to the SFO.

(o)  The 396,878,888 issued Shares, which were beneficially (b)) 7% %396,878,888 A E TR N AKE B E 1

held by Step Famous, constituted a part of the total B BEERENRAREENMIEERIES
interests of Madam Hsu Feng in the issued Shares as ZEFEm AR MO MR 2RI
disclosed in Note (C) to the above paragraph headed TETHEBBITRODIPEEZCERBH Z—
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” o

in this Report.

(0 The 255,676,326 issued Shares were beneficially () &% 255,676,326 REETRMNDABEBE

held by Cosmos Success. Cosmos Success was #H=¥EA - BB A Hoffman Enterprises Corp.
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hoffman Enterprises ([Hoffmanl) 2 2 &K B /A R) 4% A Tomson
Corp. (“Hoffman”) which was in turn wholly owned Corporaton =& A  MsEEEAFE
by Tomson Corporation in which TGL held the entire Tomson Corporation < 2 &z o E It -
interest. Therefore, Cosmos Success, Hoffman, Tomson %5  Hoffman * Tomson Corporation 5 E &
Corporation and TGL were interested or were taken BRBE(GEFRBEGRIDEB X EREBHESR
to be interested in these Shares pursuant to the SFO. ZEBRDZERD LR OBEXRERNARE
The aforesaid Shares constituted a part of the total ENFABRBERIEZ B FEa AR —
interests of Madam Hsu Feng in the issued Shares as KR (C) TR BEZ B Z TEEZITRG
disclosed in Note (C) to the above paragraph headed BHZERBE 230 -

“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”
in this Report.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company & FaftiEzsoN - EAATIEEFAA - HEL A
are not aware of any person (other than the Directors of AFEEUINMATHR - T -_FEF+—-_A=+—
the Company) who had, directly or indirectly, interests or HE S EMESRAAT ZEZTRMD EIEE
short positions in the number of issued Shares and the PR EEFRZHEFZIAR  MZEERFZIAARA
underlying shares of the Company and those interests or  EBR(E AN B EIKFIYFE 33618 7 iR T e A
short positions were required to be recorded in the register ¥ {17 2 B2 M A o

kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st December,

2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this Report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group
has mainly engaged in the sale and leasing of car parking
spaces in Shanghai and securities trading and investment
in Hong Kong, so the principal activities of the Group did
not give arise to any material adverse influences on the
environment.

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. The conscientious use of resources
and adoption of green office practices in the Group’s
offices, such as double-sided printing and copying,
promoting re-cycling principle and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliances, underlie its commitment to safeguarding the
environment.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations including, inter alia, the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules, and other applicable local
laws and regulations in various jurisdictions in which
it operates. Except for the temporary non-compliance
with certain rules under Chapter 3 of the Listing Rules
attributable to the passing away of an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and during the
first quarter of 2020 as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“The Board” in the Corporate Governance Report on
page 24 and the non-compliance with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules in relation to the sufficiency of operations
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Sufficiency of
Operations” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 17 and 18, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on it during the year ended 31st
December, 2020 and up to the date of this Report.

Report of the Directors

EER®REE

BEHLABERE

ARARBEARESREAHM I AMEHNRAS
EEMA AREHERFT(ETREIDEE T Z -

MABFHRE -

BERERRE

AEEBEHE_Z-_ZEF+_A=Z+—HIEFE
REEREEBMREHERHBEEMES LR
ERBTEFEERREER  WAEEZFE
EBWEHRRETREMNERTIZE -

AEBEBNUHRBEAEEZRETE - A&H
MEREEERER LTRAZKEMAEHE
FIanEmITEN R R E) - IRIERIRBM 2 RA KB
BEERENERERERRD R NEBER
EIRITA A

BT EERRD

AEEBNBTHREEENAD - HPBEA
ARG (ETRADEAREEELHE 2N R B
FEBERBERAZHMEMERNRN - BRNFE24
EEXEABRETREREZR|I—HARE -
AARB — B IFATESHL - KR _F—
TEF-FTRN ARAEEATFELLETRAD
F_BZETHE ERFBITERFBEEEE
WROMPIRBRIRPOEREE] —HRRE
ARBAEAFFECETRAUNIFE13.2415 BB T 591
EBEFEZREN RBEE-T-_FTF+_A=
T-BLFERNEEAREEREHBY  A&H
TTHMEFEREETENHAREEEATZEN
HREERARG -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FEFH® 62



Report of the Directors

EER®REE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2020 have been audited by the
Auditor of the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
and there was no change in the Auditor of the Company
in previous three financial years.

Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been registered
with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants as a Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 12th March, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 137, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31st December, 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Interest in an associate

We identified the interest in an associate as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the Group’s interest in
the associate to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole.

As disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company held 37% interest in the
associate, Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port
Co. Ltd., which is the Group’s strategic investment in
Shanghai. The Group’s share of results from the associate
for the year ended 31st December, 2020 is HK$53,841,000
which is approximately 368% of the Group’s profit for the
year and the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets
is HK$796,476,000 as at 31st December, 2020 which is
approximately 31% of the Group’s total assets.

As further disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements,the principal activities of the associate are
property development and investment. The Group’s share
of results of an associate is highly dependent on the
associate’s revenue recognised for the year ended 31st
December, 2020.
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How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Qur procedures in relation to the interest in an associate
included:

° Discussing with the management of the Group
and working with the component audit team to
understand the associate’s business performance
and significant events for the year to identify and
assess risks that are significant to the audit of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements;

° Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of
the component audit team’s work by reviewing their
underlying audit documentation;

° Discussing with the component audit team to further
understand results of their work in particular those
on the associate’s revenue; and

o Evaluating the accuracy of financial data of the
associate used by the management of the Group by
comparing them with financial information audited by
the component audit team.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

67 RIVERA (HOLDINGS) LIMITED JIA &£ BB R A A

EERERERSANBRE
B

i

=
il
FH 8l

BERRIEFERARBEEE SRS RM
(BEWBREEADRFB(RAHGIDRERE
MEFNEREHBHRE  UHERSBEREY
15 2% B B4 T 17 1 B O RRRE SEE SR T 8 B
BERERRAMFNAINEZEESR -

ERBEAMBHREE EFAENE E5E
FEREMREN  YTEERBATHRERFEL
LEENER UNERFBELLERSTER -
RFEZEAEH BEEEBRAELLE 5|
BEHMERNELIER -

BFNER SUREHMEBRRBEEBREETEHE
AR ERMERNE X H#HREAEG A E
R WIRREB(RBE DI FE 405166 15 E 12
AEEKELABREMERNZBERES -
BRULASN - PR EE AT BIEEMAR - &
MY TR RE 2 AT EE R EMA T AEE
METAEREARS GEREEFHKEN
RiE - ETRERERB(EEEAEADETHNE
At ERXR—BERERRATERBRERER - B3R
SRt AT LA R BRFF Bk #H RR 5 - A0 R A IR TR HA B 4
ERENEAERAETERSVBRRERE
KRB HRRAELOEERTE - A BRAER
R AT AREE K o



As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRHEBRES
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYREMBES

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12th March, 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REBE@ER

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B E—ZE _EF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-FF —ET-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FE T FHET
Gross proceeds from operations e s 4B R 788 109,068 181,421
Revenue WA 788 1,657 1,556
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (238) (297)
Gross profit E 1,419 1,259
Dividends from equity instruments EAFEFAEMEZR
at fair value through other WamzBRATARZ
comprehensive income A% B A 27,203 44,514
Other income H I A 9 13,593 22,717
Selling expenses HEEM (14) (13)
Administrative expenses THER (12,822) (13,543)
Other gains and losses Hzm & B8 10 (8,982) (566)
Net (loss) gain on financial assets EAFEFAEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEE2(E1)
W FFE (55,950) 14,772
(35,553) 69,140
Share of results of an associate e —REE AR EE 53,841 45,791
Profit before taxation B %% A 1 18,288 114,931
Taxation i I8 1 (3,644) (3,046)
Profit for the year FE & 12 14,644 111,885
Profit (loss) for the year FEBMNEE) DR
attributable to: N
Owners of the Company RArREEFAA 15,229 111,747
Non-controlling interests FE 1% % A% SRR 2 (585) 138
14,644 111,885
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRAERN CEW)
— Basic — EX 15 0.58 4.28
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SeRaRkEMZEKER

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B ZE—ZE _EF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Profit for the year FE & A 14,644 111,885
Other comprehensive income (expense): Emermkams () :
ltems that may be subsequently HEENEF D EEZEm AL
reclassified to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising from BRETISERESZ
translation of: PE W =%
— other foreign operations — H g INER 7,087 (2,518)
— an associate — —REE QR 45,815 (14,676)
Item that will not be reclassified to BT EEH T EEEmR
profit or loss: HH :
Fair value losses on equity instruments BAFEFAEMET
at fair value through other Wz BRATHEZ
comprehensive income N EEE (6,468) (67,043)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEAEMEEK S (F )
for the year 46,434 (84,237)
Total comprehensive income FEXEAWREAE
for the year 61,078 27,648
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2HWE(FAX) B
attributable to: DEBT
Owners of the Company RArRIEREFTAA 61,303 27,690
Non-controlling interests FE 12 % AR SRR & (225) (42)
61,078 27,648
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

w2 B R 3R

At 31st December, 2020 R=—E-_ZT&E+=-_HF=+—H

2020 2019
—2-2F ZTNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3 FET FET
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB K& 16 2,878 3,593
Investment property KEME 17 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate RN—REERNE 2 18 796,476 739,250
Equity instruments at fair value through & A F{E &t A H & M
other comprehensive income Wizm 2z AT A 19 484,482 490,319
1,312,399 1,261,725
Current Assets REBEE
Properties held for sale HEWHE 15,698 15,045
Financial assets at fair value through R A FEFTAIEZ 2
profit or loss MBEE 20 225,909 222,659
Other receivables and prepayments b & U BR 3% K 8 1+ 5018 4,288 16,764
Tax recoverable &R IR 17,499 17,348
Cash and bank balances B RIBTEES 21 1,004,355 1,088,873
1,267,749 1,360,689
Current Liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals HihERER MTERE A 11,803 11,376
Net Current Assets RBEEFEE 1,255,946 1,349,313
Total Assets less Current Liability @& ER KB A E 2,568,345 2,611,038
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital PR 22 442,244 442,244
Reserves @ 2,094,010 2,137,049
Equity attributable to owners ARBERFEA
of the Company JE G e 2= 2,536,254 2,579,293
Non-controlling interests FE 12 % A% B A 2 8,323 8,548
Total Equity 4R R 2,544,577 2,587,841
Non-current Liability kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 24 23,768 23,197
2,568,345 2,611,038
The consolidated financial statements were approved and AV FEHER ST _—F A+ _HEEZH

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12th

March, 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Ying
2 &
Chairman

e

i i 7 R

Albert Tong

= 1 [E
Director

EF

VTHTIEETKERE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEX

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B2 —ZT T F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARBERAARE
Foreign
currency Investment Other non- Total Non-
Share translation revaluation distributable  Retained capital and controlling Total
capital  reserve reserve reserve profits reserves interests equity
M RE m@FT  EAR  $BE
kx ReRE EfRE SREE REER BELE RREE 48R
(Noeg) — (Note 0)
(Wita)  (Wito)
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
Térx Tz TErn Térx Tz TEn TER TE=n
Balance at 1st January, 2019 RIF-NE-A-BEH a4 7863 1960 4630 2074177 2655046 8590 2664535
Fair value loss on equity nstruments R AFEAZ M2 AN
at fair value through other LBAIA
comprehensive income LAVERR = - (67020 = - (67020 (1 (67043
Exchange differences arising flom ~~ AETHBEREEL 2
translation of; EXEE:
- other foreign operations ~EthBER - 23 - - - (235 (163 (2519
- an associate ~—RBE R - (14676) - - - (14678) - (14678)
Other comprehensive expense EEEMRERY
for the year . = (17081)  (67,026) = - (B4057) (180 (84,237)
Profit for the year EERH = = - - i i 138 111,685
Total comprenensive (expense) income & 2 (B ) l#
for the year - (17,031) (67,026) - 111,747 21,690 (42) 21,648
Transfer from retained profits of a —FHBLEBERDRF
subsidiary to other non-distributable ~ EE AR /ﬁﬁfﬁ
reserve . - - - 309 (309) - - -
Dividend paid (Note 14) AR 8 (i 14) - - - - (104342 (104342 - (10434
Balance at 31st December, 2019 RZE-NE
t-B=t-B&# MM 61232 (7305 41930 2081273 2579293 8548 2587841
Fair value loss on equity instruments ~ RATEFAEM2ENE
at fair value through other \ZHM‘I,EE
comprehensive income ATEER = - (6369 - - (839 09  (6468)
Exchange differences arising from T@#TW BABEEL
translation of; BRZSE:
- other foreign operations fﬁmﬁl\%ﬂ - 6,628 - - - 6,628 459 7087
- an associate RBELT - 45815 = = - 5815 - 45815
Other comprehensive EEEMZENERY)
income (expense) for the year ) - 52,443 (6,369 - - 46,074 360 46,434
Proft (loss) for the year EREN(BR) - - - - 1529 15229 (585 14644
Total comprenensive income (expense) R 2 (51 %) iz A%
for the year = 52,443 (6,369) = 15,029 61,303 (205 61,078
Dividend paid (Note 14) A3 B8 (B 14) = - - - (104340 (10434 (104,342)
Balance at 31st December, 2020 HR=Z=EE
TZB=t-R&# 442,244 113,675 (53,764) 41,939 1,992,160 2,536,254 8,323 2,544,577
Note a: Other non-distributable reserve represents enterprise  ffita: HM TS IREEE—RRPEAREM
expansion fund and statutory reserve of a subsidiary in the Wi ((FERLD2MBRARIZCERRES
Mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the “Mainland NOEEREME -
China”).
Note b: At 31st December, 2020, included in retained profits Afathb: WM-ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H FTARB&EANE
with aggregate amount of HK$168,632,000 (2019: 31 68 632,000/ 7T (= Z — /1. %F : 167,869,000/%8

HK$167,869,000)

is the appropriation to enterprise

expansion fund and statutory reserve by an associate
established in the Mainland China attributable to the Group.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HmERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 & ZE —Z —

EEF_A=1T—HLHFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit before taxation Fx 75 BT 4 A 18,288 114,931
Adjustments for: AT T -
Interest income A B U A (13,460) (22,658)
Dividends from equity instruments BAFEAEM 2K
at fair value through other ZBRAITAZKREWA
comprehensive income (27,203) (44,514)
Depreciation of property, ME - BELZBITE
plant and equipment 714 865
Impairment loss on other receivable Hh R 2 BB BB 10,953 -
Fair value loss (gain) on financial assets & A F{EHA B 2 75
at fair value through profit or loss BEZAFEEEMWR) 71,944 (947)
Written-off of property, MEEE - BRERZE
plant and equipment 1 -
Share of results of an associate EE—KEE RAIEE (53,841) (45,791)
Operating cash flows before movements & E & & & B5F1 2
in working capital KEBERE 7,396 1,886
Decrease in properties held for sale FEMERD 246 293
Increase in financial assets BRAFEGFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss B 75 & 2= 180 (75,194) (106,748)
Decrease in other receivables H b & U BR R R TR 3R IE
and prepayments VR 2,493 791
Decrease in other payables and accruals EMEMBERRFEIRE R
Ve (638) (2,366)
Cash used in operations AREEEE RS (65,697) (106,144)
Income taxes paid EfER (96) (120,404)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ARREETBH RS FH
ACTIVITIES (65,793) (226,548)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—EZERF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Dividends received from an associate Bl —KEE AR Z KRS
(net of withholding tax) (BRI 40,309 44,907
Interest received 2 U F B 13,199 21,104
Dividends received from equity instruments 2 A F{E 5T A H b & E Uk z5
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ Z B% A T A 7 B W A% 8
income 27,203 44 514
CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES XEBREZEBHZHZE 80,711 110,525
CASH USED IN AN FINANCING ARmEETSH 2RE
ACTIVITY
Dividend paid B E (104,342) (104,342)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BHeRBELEEHEB
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA FRE (89,424) (220,365)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HZBERK
AT 1ST JANUARY HeEEEH 1,088,873 1,313,034
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE IEEXRESH 2 E
RATE CHANGES 4,906 (3,796)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-ZA=+—HzHE&
AT 31ST DECEMBER, FREEEER -
represented by cash and bank balances  BNIR & K R 17 45 & 1,004,355 1,088,873
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B Ak Y A

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B2 — T - TF+ - A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office and principal place of business is Rooms
1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are property
development and investment, and securities trading
and investment.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
“Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1st January,
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39

and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The application of the “Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards”
and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for current or prior
accounting periods.

1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GERMBHmRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 HZEZE T -"FTF+_HA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFFIKE BB HEELD)
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG & EA&E )

FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DAR DS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new AEBHMAREERANUATEBMEMNKE
HKFRS and amendments to HKFRSs that have been B2 FeKE BT EREER DR BT A
issued but are not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (CEBT B HREEL]D RERE 4 &
and the related FATR EEERT A
Amendments!
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 — Related Rent (BB B HREER) 201958 MR B A
Concessions? EACCH] $) HEAEE
BE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the (CRBH B REAER]D 7 *E)f/\ﬂ gz
Conceptual Framework? EREACCEIRY) e 2
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark (CRBHEMEAER]D F R E AR
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2° Fo KBAES ME
HKFRS 4 and >‘§EIJ>>%89%% (BBEUE — F_RBER
HKFRS 16 WEERDNETS (BB

Eﬁ%#&%ﬁBW%%ﬁ&
(EBUBREER)
F165R (1B 3T $)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution @i}% B 7% 3R 45 ZE A1) ) wEEEE
and HKAS 28 of Assets between F109 R(E B @ /N
an Investor and its AE Bl Y ZE2855% (15 5] A) BETXEM
Associate or Joint BEDENK
Venture® A8
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities (BB GFEADEIR DEBERRY
as Current or Non- CCHES sk IE 7 B &
current and related EEEERE
amendments to Hong E5% Z1EF]
Kong Interpretation 5 (Z2ZTF)"
(2020)’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and (BB GTERDF165% Y% BB Rk
Equipment — Proceeds (& 7T A) Bl —HE
before Intended Use? R&Er 2
FiT 15 FX 382
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost (BB GTERDEITR BB S 4
of Fulfiling a Contract? (1BETA) — J’?Eﬁ(:n\m"]
2 B AR?
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to (CEBT B HREEL])D —E-N\FE
HKFRSs 2018-20202 (1BET ) —_T_FTF
35 Hﬁ <<%|C i
s
EHDHFE
oy 2
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st L RZTEZ=F—A— A=k EERKFEH
January, 2023. AR °
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 2 REZE——F—A— Ak EERRZFEH
January, 2022. FIAER -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 8 REEEZRHRERARZFEHBELE
to be determined. R e
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 4 RZE_TF A B EBRBZFE
June, 2020. AR °
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st 2 RZTE=——F—FA—HXEEHARZFEH
January, 2021. FIAER -
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continuea)

The Directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all the above new HKFRS and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and comply with the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern
the preparation of consolidated financial statements.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary uses. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 “Leases” and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 HZE - T " ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. The results
of subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss from the date of the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (coniinueq)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

The associate’s financial statements used for the
application of equity method of accounting are
prepared using uniform accounting policies with
the Group for transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of the associate to
bring its accounting policies into line with those used
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL’) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continued)

Financial assets (continueaq)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is not held for trading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continued)

Financial assets (continueaq)

(i

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends
are separately disclosed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and
is separately disclosed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continueq)
Financial assets (continueaq)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL’) model on financial
assets which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (including
other receivables and cash and bank balances). The
assessment on ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continueq)
Financial assets (continueaq)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuead)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread or the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continueq)
Financial assets (continueaq)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

When a financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

The Group considers that default has occurred
when the financial instrument is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 HZEZE T -"FTF+_HA=+—HItFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ,.v-\é,ﬁﬂ%iﬁ%f%zgﬁ

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continueq)
Financial assets (continuea)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

The Group recognises on impairment gain or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for all
financial assets by adjusting their carrying amount.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continueq)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (representing other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effect interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
On derecognition of an investment in equity

instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments continued)

Derecognition (continuead)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
charged so as to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method. Freehold
lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment, other
than freehold land over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which the item is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the tangible asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

—EFET_A=+—BLHEE

3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost or net realisable value.

Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods (or a
bundle of goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods that are substantially the same.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct goods.

Leases

The Group as lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arrangement an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”)) at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of the assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in an associate, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that has been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefits schemes

Contributions payable by the Group to its defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes are charged
as an expense to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All the short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

4. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION 4.

—EFET_A=+—BLHEE

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The key source of estimation uncertainty that can
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial information in the next financial year is
disclosed as follows:

Valuation of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are measured at the lower
of cost or net realisable value. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to Directors’ estimates
based on the prevailing market condition. The Group
has properties held for sale in Shanghai, which
exposes the Group to certain price risk. If the net
realisable value is less than the cost, impairment on
the properties held for sale has to be made. The
management is optimistic about the prospect of
the Group’s investment in the property sector and
it has been cautious in formulating and reviewing
regularly the Group’s business plan. The carrying
amount of properties held for sale of the Group at
31st December, 2020 was HK$15,698,000 (2019:
HK$15,045,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continuead)

Fair value measurement of unlisted
equity instruments

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments are
determined with reference to the adjusted net assets
values of the investments or arrived at market
approach, which included inputs that are not based
on observable market data. If there are changes
in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of the unobservable market data, such changes
will impact the fair value. Note 6(c) provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of the unlisted equity instruments. The
carrying amount of unlisted equity instruments of the
Group at 31st December, 2020 was HK$9,666,000
(2019: HK$10,557,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically by considering the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. When necessary, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

6. TR TR

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial (a) €@ T AEA
instruments
2020 2019
—E-EF —F-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
Financial assets MKEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEZZ
BEE 225,909 222,659
Financial assets at HEEK AT E Z
amortised cost BEE 1,008,325 1,105,271
Equity instruments at FVTOCI & AFEA EM 2 E
Was 2 RAT A 484,482 490,319
Financial liabilities g S=R
At amortised cost 1% B §H A AR 5,206 5,202

Financial risks management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, other receivables, cash and bank
balances and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.

(Continued)

(b) Financial risks management (b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 & & - =&

=

R B WmARMEE

—EE+-A=+—BIER
2R T B

BREREEEER KK

objectives and policies (continued)

Market Risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily

™ % & b2
AEEEBETEMEIEER - FI=X

to the financial risks of changes in foreign EREABRESHZEREAR - THE
currency exchange rates, interest rates and i — P UABBRE DTS - ﬁi 55
equity prices. Market risk exposures are further FESzmSERIHEERE NFER

measured by sensitivity analysis. There has
been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.
Details of each type of market risks are
described as follows:

(i) Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances and
listed equity securities held by the Group
are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
which is a foreign currency other than
functional currency (i.e. HKD) of the
relevant Group entities (see Notes 20 and
21). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2019: 5%) appreciation/depreciation
in HKD against RMB.

° post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2020 would
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,013,000 (2019: HK$1,413,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

6. TR TR

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risks management
objectives and policies (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group has minimal interest rate risk
as most of the interest bearing financial
assets are bank deposits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risks for bank deposits. The
analysis is prepared on the balances at
the end of reporting period. 50 basis
points (2019: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease are used which represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on bank deposits, if
interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2019: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended
31st December, 2020 would increase/
decrease by HK$5,022,000 (2019:
HK$5,444,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks and
closely monitor the price changes. In
additions, the Group also invested in
certain unquoted equity instruments for
long term strategic purposes which had
been designed as FVTOCI. The Directors
of the Company closely manage the
price risk by regularly reviewing the
performance of the unquoted equity
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 HZE - T " ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TR I R
(Continued)
(b) Financial risks management b) BERBEEEERBEE®

objectives and policies (continued)
Market Risk (continued) ik 3 3E )

(i) BRAEHEE &)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. Sensitivity analysis for
unquoted equity investments with fair
value measurement categorised within
Level 3 were disclosed in Note 6(c).

If the prices of the respective listed equity
securities had been 10% (2019: 10%)
higher/lower:

° post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2020 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$18,863,000 (2019: HK$18,592,000)
for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL; and

° other comprehensive income (2019:
other comprehensive expense)
would increase/decrease (2019:
decrease/increase) by approximately
HK$47,482,000 (2019: HK$47,976,000)
for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity
instruments at FVTOCI.

HRBREDN

T2 SRR E DT IR 1 3R &5 5
R IRAER R e A& EmE
EoBAR=ZRATEAEZE
Wﬁ RATH 2 §URE DRI
uf6 T&ng’

MEBEIETRALEZ B
FFS T BI0% (ZE — N F:
10%) :

L] @i—?—fi—'— ﬂ _|’
—BIEFEAREE g R
BN IE AT EFTAB R
ZHBEE 2 A EEEM
#A0,8  4918,863,00055
L (ZZF— 1% : 18,592,000
Bt &k

s AEEBEZEMEAKRZ(Z
T-NF:EMEEAX)
BRERZEAFETAEM
PEREZ ETRATAE
/N ﬂ?fﬁ“iﬂﬁﬁi‘bu/md\
(ZE—NF @] )
% 47,482,000,%71 (ZZ—N
£ 1 47,976,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risks management

—EEt-—A=H+—ALEE
6. TR T A

(b)

objectives and policies (continued)

Credit Risk and Impairment
Assessment

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk, which will
cause a financial loss to the Group, arises from
the carrying amount of respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position due to failure to
perform an obligation by the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
will ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover any overdue debts. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

As at 31st December, 2020, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover the credit risks
associated with those financial assets.

The Group measures the loss allowance on
liquid funds equal to 12-month ECL. Since
the Directors of the Company consider the
probability of default on counterparties is
remote and therefore given they are of low
credit risk, the Group presumes there has been
no significant increase in credit risk. No ECL
allowance has been recognised as the amount
is not considered to be material.

Besides concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
and security brokers with high credit ratings,
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @I R

(Continued)

BREREEEER KK

(b) Financial risks management

(b)

objectives and policies (continued)

Credit Risk and Impairment
Assessment (continued)

For other receivables, the Directors of the
Company regularly received and assessed the
credit quality of the counterparties. As at 31st
December, 2020, other receivables with gross
carrying amount of HK$14,923,000 (2019:
HK$16,398,000) were assessed individually
based on 12-month ECL, except for other
receivable that was credit impaired was
assessed based on lifetime ECL. As at 31st
December, 2020, an impairment loss of other
receivable amount of HK$10,953,000 (2019:
Nil) has been recognised since the balance
has been overdue and it is becoming probable
that the debtor will not be able to repay the
outstanding balance.

Liquidity Risk

The Group expects to have sufficient funds to
meet its financial obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The Group will consider raising bank
borrowings when it is necessary.

1= & B B &R {E 5T ko)

REMERERNS  ARFESTE
HEMRTERZIEF2EEEER -
R-ZZBE-_ZEF+-_A=+—8" &

M 42 {814,923,000/8 7T (=& — L F :
16,398,000/ 7T ) < E b JE W BR SR B 1%
128 AT EE 8 ETE A1

HEEERE . EMmERERKEIZES
HEHREEBBETTE KT
ZE+-A=+—H BRABLE
Emﬁ%&ﬁﬁA%T%$£%@$
BRI ES  ARAEBEAEMENR
BR FUHE 22 Rk (B /E54810,953,00058 7T (—
T—NF:E)-

REBE SRR

AEEBEHBARMET EARE B
RrEBRBMAER -

AEERHEcRRIE  ~EEE
m&zﬁ%ikkiﬁréwmj%ﬁizfﬁiﬁiﬁ
EEEEHENKFEUAEBNRERS

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ%{ﬁiﬁiuwi/&@mgfﬁ ° Z'S
EEERNEZTEREEMBITEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

6. TR TR

(b) Financial risks management

objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity Risk (continuea)
Liquidity table

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.

(b)

BREMREEAEREE®

REE S M

TRHANAEENMBREZHKTE
MBIEIER - W RIDRIBASERA
REREREEVBERENKFAHRZ
AERREREMBIFT

Less than
3 months Total
LPR=@EA ot
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T THET
As at 31st December, 2020 R-ZT_-Z &
+=HA=+-—H
Other payables H fib B~ BR X 5,206 5,206
As at 31st December, 2019 RZZE—NF
+=-—RA=+—H
Other payables H i & 5 BR 5K 5,202 5,202
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R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TR T H»

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of c) EMIAEZAFEFE
financial instruments
Certain Group’s financial instruments are AEEETEMTERSHREHRE
measured at fair value at the end of each NEEFT=E - TRIBEEHENAETE
reporting period. The following table gives ZESMITE 2 A FEGRIZRER
information about how the fair values of R E R X A SR B R o

these financial instruments are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs

used).
Fair value as at
31st December
R+=A=+—HBzZA¥E
2020 2019
—EZEFE —EB—AHF Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial instruments HK$’000 HK$’000 hierarchy and key inputs
S@MIA FERT FExT AFEKL FEETREZ@AHE
Financial assets at FVTPL 225,909 222,659 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
EAFEFAER 2 HBEE F— active market
RGBS 2 W8
Equity instruments at FVTOCI
RATFEFAEMEE W Z 2
BRATA
— Unlisted equity investments 6,475 6,389 Level 3  Note (i)
EEmRAEKE EB=M K0
— Unlisted equity investments 3,191 4,168 Level 3  Note (ii)
EETRAKE FE=® K@)
— Listed equity investments 474,816 479,762 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
ERAKE F— active market
RIER™ 5 2R E
710,391 712,978
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of
financial instruments continuea)

Notes:

(i) The fair value is determined with reference
to the adjusted net assets values of the
unlisted equity investments. The adjustment is
applied on the underlying assets held by the
investee companies, which comprised unlisted
equity investments. An increase/decrease in
the adjustment would result in an increase/
decrease in the fair value of the unlisted equity
investments.

(ii) The fair value is determined based on market
approach for business enterprises valuation with
reference to the market capitalisation of listed
entities in similar industries with consideration
of marketability discount. A slight increase in
the marketability discount would result in a
significant decrease in the fair value of the
investments, and vice versa.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

Unlisted equity investments measured at

6. TRIAw

c) ERMIEZAFEFEw

Hrat

() AFENSERLTRAREEHE
MAEFEMERE - WHEB AR
%2 RBEE(BEFLETRARE)
fEHIRE - BEZ M, R SR
JEmRARE 2 AT EZEN, A

o

(i) RDNFEDIREMSELSZRUTE
ZETERBzTESEMCEETHRE
WEERTISRBEFEMETE - 15
BT & 2 B A SRR ER
BZRFERNBRY  RZIFA -

F=MLAFEFEZHK

BAFEFAHEMEERGEFTEZF

FVTOCI: FHRAKE :
HK$’000
FER
As at 1st January, 2019 RZE-HhLF—HA—H 11,036
Fair value loss recognised in other 7 EL At 2 TE U 25 T 5R
comprehensive income NEEZEE 272)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNE PE R B B 2 22 & (207)
As at 31st December, 2019 R_E-NF+_HA=+—H 10,557
Fair value loss recognised in other 7 EL At 2 T U 25 T 3R
comprehensive income NFEZEE (1,622)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEXEFH 2w E 631
As at 31st December, 2020 R-B-_ZFBFE+=-A=+—H 9,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RHE
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TR T H»
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of c) ERMIEZAFEFE®

financial instruments (continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2
and 3 in both years.

Except for the financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis,
the Directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

RREFE F—H F_AKRE=
R EER -

BIEEUEREARTEAEZHB
BEIN ARBAEZRL RNEAH
BRENBRZMBEELVKEAE
ZEREEREEAFERE -

e 1 A
7. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 7. REWBZABBRRKA
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hnF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T T T
Sales of properties HEME 821 969
Leasing of properties iz /S 836 587
REVENUE PN 1,657 1,556
Gross proceeds from disposal of HEZAFETAEZ
financial assets at FVTPL LHBEEZ W =B 63,880 127,924
Dividends income from equity EAFEFAEMEE
instruments at FVTOCI W@mZ2RARTAEZ
I B A 27,203 44,514
Dividends income from financial assets & A F Bt A8 28 2 BT 1%
at FVTPL BEZRBEBA 16,328 7,427
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM REW AT
OPERATIONS 109,068 181,421
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gﬂ'ﬁ'_A

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

7.

B 5 ) R MY =

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

(Continued)

Performance obligation for contracts
with customers

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at
a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment
and collection of the consideration is probable.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reportable segments,
based on information reported to the chief operating
decision makers, the Executive Directors of the
Company, for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment are as follows:

Property Development — sales and leasing of
and Investment properties
Securities Trading and - dealings in financial

assets at FVTPL and
equity instruments at
FVTOCI

Investment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 & & —

mEMBHRRME
F-FE+-A=t RIS

W2
SEGMENT INFORMATION conines 8. 338 E #l=)
Property Securities
Development Trading and
and Investment Investment Total
MEERE EBHEE
EEE EEE ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FE T
2020 —E-EHE
Gross proceeds from operations & UK 34858
- segment revenue — BB A 1,657 107,411 109,068
Results E
Segment losses HEEE (462) (28,825) (29,287)
Other income H bl A 13,593
Unallocated expenses TFoERx (19,859)
Share of results of an associate JEM— KB E DRI FEE 53,841
Profit before taxation B B B i 18,288
2019 — R
Gross proceeds from operations K& UK A5
- segment revenue -2 EKRA 1,556 179,865 181,421
Results E
Segment (loss) profit D E(ERE) & F 612) 59,264 58,652
Other income H 4 g A 22,717
Unallocated expenses T FHERX (12,229)
Share of results of an associate B —XEE DR ¥E 45,791
Profit before taxation R B B & A 114,931

Except for the presentation of segment revenue
which is different from the reported revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 3. For details of reconciliation
of segment revenue to the Group’s revenue of
HK$1,657,000 (2019: HK$1,556,000), please refer
to Note 7. Segment (loss) profit represents the
results of each segment without allocation of
central administrative costs including depreciation of
property, plant and equipment for corporate function,
directors’ salaries, share of results of an associate
and other income. This is the measure reported to
the Executive Directors for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

BRoOBWABGAESRKRTPHREKAZ
EFRNTRNN  BESE 2SR RE
BTt AE B 2 @3 RAR - 51U
A BRZN &= F U A1,657,00056 7T (ZZ— 4 :
x%m%%ﬂZﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬂWEw
HBEB)sMNESYBXE ﬂﬁiﬁ*ﬁé‘w\
EP%??EA(EJZN@%W’Em%Iﬂ EZ2WE

MERREZTE) EFZHH  BE—K
BENTEEREMBKA - WIHRRITE

EREERIELXGEFNBZAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

—EFET_A=+—BLHEE

THEER @

Assets and Liabilities EERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets NTRASERRESDHIEHPZEERA
and liabilities by reportable segments: B2 :
Property Securities
Development Trading and
and Investment Investment Total
MERR BHEE
EEE k& #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FH&T FH&T
2020 —E-8&
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 45,546 712,157 757,703
Interest in an associate R—RKEERR 2w 796,476
Unallocated assets FToOBEE 1,025,969
Consolidated total assets REBEE 2,580,148
Liabilities 8&
Segment liabilities b2) *EE (T 10,368 - 10,368
Unallocated liabilities NEBE 25,203
Consolidated total liabilities REBAaE 35,571
2019 —E-NF
Assets ﬁ I3
Segment assets DIEEE 44,941 714,748 759,689
Interest in an associate EA EQAU/NCI e % 739,250
Unallocated assets FTREEE 1,123,475
Consolidated total assets MEREE 2,622,414
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities DEEE 10,068 = 10,068
Unallocated liabilities TTHEEE 24,505
Consolidated total liabilities RERAE 34,573
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R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION conines 8. BB E #la

Assets and Liabilities (continve) EEREE®

For the purposes of monitoring segment RTEESEBZPBERERSBEER:

performances and allocating resources between

segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments . BRIERFETNREZME BEKREE
other than property, plant and equipment for R—REERR 2= BEERIEE
corporate function, interest in an associate, E ReRkiR{THEH%  BRHRIBRE
deferred tax assets, cash and bank balances, 1 ERE 2 H b W BR R R TE /B
tax recoverable and other receivables and SN FMBEEATEESWEDE:
prepayments for corporate function; and )54

. all liabilities are allocated to reportable . BRIEMIEIE  BEREBERELE
segments other than tax payable, deferred tax ez AR RR EKIBIRE AN -
liabilities and other payables and accruals for FMEEEHIRESREDE -
corporate function.

Other Information H {th & #

Property Securities
Development Trading and
and Investment Investment Total
MERRE BFHEE
ERE k& #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHE T FHE T
Amounts included in the measure  &F A FH & 5 8% ) sk
of segment profits DEEERNRIE:
or segment assets:
2020 —E-EHF
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - = &
equipment RETE 15 - 15
2019 —T—h&F
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - WE &
and equipment R E 15 — 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninues) 8.

Revenue from Major Products and
Services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
from its major products and services:

ZEF+_A=+—HILEFE

TEER
FEERERBRBEWVA

AT RAEEEZEMBERBUWAZDH :

2020 2019
—E-FTF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Sales of properties HEME 821 969
Leasing of properties ez 836 587
1,657 1,556
Geographical Information thE o5 EE R

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong,
Macau and the Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based
on the location of properties sold and leased out and
information about its non-current assets (excluding
equity instruments at FVTOCI) by geographical
location of the assets (including the operation of the
associate) are detailed below:

AEBZEZBURES  RFIRHPEARN -

AEBERYELER BB Z AER 2 &
SMEHEWA - URBEBREEMEH (B

BrenR s 2 i) Bl B A E (T
BREAFEFAEMBEEK S 2 BAT

B)ERFAWT

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

HIOMEE WA ERBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E_EHE —NFE ZZE-FTF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T FET T T
Macau JE P - - 31,440 32,154
The Mainland China R A 3 1,657 1,556 796,477 739,252
1,657 1,556 827,917 771,406
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 & & —

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continveq)

Information about Major Customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2020, revenue
from a single customer in property development and
investment segment amounted to HK$836,000 which
contributed to approximately 50.45% of the Group’s
total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2019, revenue
from a single customer in property development and
investment segment amounted to HK$587,000 which
contributed to approximately 37.72% of the Group’s
total revenue.

OTHER INCOME

Other income included interest income of

HK$13,460,000 (2019: HK$22,658,000).

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8.

e MR
“EF+-ASt-BLEE

THEER @
FEFZFER
He2—Z-_FTF+_A=1+—"HILEFE K

BEYEERRMEEDBEZE—RTPZWAL
836,000/ 7T * 1 AN 5 B B U A 4950.45% ©

BE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE XK
BEYMERRMEEDBEZE—RTPZWAL
587,00078 7T * 15 AN K B B U A #4937.72% ©

Hitb 4 A

H it We A B35 F B UK A13,460,000/8 7T (==
— L4 : 22,658,000/ TT) °

10. Hftli &= R B 18

2020 2019

—_ 7 — $ > —j‘LE‘E

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FHETT

Exchange (gain) loss b 5 (W2 ) 548 (1,971) 566
Impairment loss on other receivable £ b & I BR 3% 2 BB &5 18 10,953 -
8,982 566

During the year ended 31st December, 2020,
the Group provided impairment allowance of
HK$10,953,000 to an individual debtor under lifetime
ECL since it is becoming probable that the debtor
will not be able to repay the outstanding balance.

NEBEE_T_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE
EEW?%AHJJ%E%H;}@K/.EJ%Z

/ AEBEEREBHEHEEREEA
%%’z TR A B B 15510,953,0008 7T °

@}%‘
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

11. TAXATION 11. H I

2020 2019
g Junp 32 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Current tax: RNERFHIE -
Mainland China FEIR D EREH
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) 856 827
Mainland China B At i 32 (E A
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) 96 82
Mainland China Withholding Tax R B A b R B A 2,121 2,364
Overprovision in prior years: BAEFERERE
Macau Complementary Tax SBPIET 1S - (72)
Mainland China EIT (Note (j) H R 1D EE TS B
(K1 &) - (17,540)
3,073 (14,339)
Deferred tax charge (Note 24) I JE 5 TA 5 2 (BT 5E24) 571 17,385
Total tax charge for the year AEEMIBERZ LT 3,644 3,046

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019:
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made since there is no assessable profit for
both years.

The Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12%
(2019: 12%) on the taxable income for the year. No
provision for Macau Complementary Tax has been
made since there is no assessable profit for both
years.

The income tax rate of the subsidiaries in the
Mainland China for the year ended 31st December,
2020 is 25% (2019: 25%).

Note (i):

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, a subsidiary of
the Group cleared and settled LAT with local tax authorities
and the subsidiary became eligible to claim the related
deduction for EIT recognised in respective previous years. As a
result, the related deferred tax asset of HK$17,540,000 arising
from the LAT was charged to profit or loss. The same amount
of overprovision of EIT in prior years was credited to profit or
loss.
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A 7 FE A IE FE T8 & EE17,540,00078 ;T E R B 25
k- HRSEZEBAFEBBERELCEMEH
ERFAEZEF -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 & & —

1 1 . TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before taxation (excluding share of results
of an associate) per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

e MR
“EF+-ASt-BLEE

11. BB

AFEREzREFRAX BESBER ZBRTA
(BR) &M (T BREIE—KE2EARER)
Z R

2020 2019
- ;3 —NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
(Loss) profit before taxation B 7% Bl (B548) 4 )
(excluding share of results of (TBEERE—REE
an associate) NAIELE) (35,553) 69,140
Mainland China EIT at the tax rate of FP[EAIH{> 3 FT1S Fi iR fi K
25% (2019: 25%) 25% (ZZF — L4 : 25%) (8,888) 17,285
Tax effect of income not taxable DA A 2T 1% 52
for tax purpose (13,710) (17,905)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] FNFi 5 H 2 7 765 7 £
for tax purpose 3,468 690
Tax effect of tax losses not KRR IEJ%’ Bz
recognised Mg e 19,986 764
Overprovision of current tax in BAEFEARAARIE 2
prior years B 58 HE 4 - (17,612)
Mainland China LAT A B A Hb £ b 3 (B R 96 82
Deferred tax on undistributed R A — SR B QR
earnings of an associate in the ZADIKRBREEZ
Mainland China i AE 75 18 2,692 2,201
Utilisation of tax effect on LAT A IR EN 2
M - 17,541
Tax charge for the year RNEFEBIEZH 3,644 3,046

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note
24,

EERIAF BN E24 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FE & F
2020 2019
—EZEF —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived & & A 2 31 :
at after charging:
Staff costs BT KA 2,258 3,107
Retirement benefits scheme RARAE FI 2] 2 R
contributions 24 36
Total staff costs BT A#BET
(including Directors’ emoluments) (BREEEMW) 2,282 3,143
Auditor’s remuneration % EURD B & 1,167 1,180
Cost of properties held for HREAI ZGEEWE
sales recognised as expenses BN 238 297
Depreciation of property, ME - BWERZETE
plant and equipment 714 865
Written-off of property, WEDE - BRENREE
plant and equipment 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

13. EEREEM S

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each
Director for the year ended 31st December,
2020 and 2019 are set out below:

@ EEME

 ECECEFR_FE—NF+_A=
+—BIFEENSENTIESTZ
B R :

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
30 =321 EHRERN
Name of Director EERZ e REMEFN E2HEX WeHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FEx TET FEx
2020 “ECEF
Non-executive Chairman FHBTERE
Liu Ying 2 #® - - - -
Executive Directors BITES
Hsu Feng &k M - - - -
Albert Tong %1 - 928 18 946
Tong Chi Kar Charles #TE - - - -
Zhao Haisheng g - - - -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sung Tze-Chun AUE - - - -
Independent BIFHTES
Non-executive Directors
Zhang Hong Bin ERM 132 - - 132
Ng Chi Him REH 120 - - 120
Tsang Kam Chuen &5 99 - - 99
Sit Hing Kwok (deceased) B L (BEEAH) 5 - - 5
356 928 18 1,302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EZEENREEM £ »
E M 0 LU M E NTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@ EEMEw
Retirement
Salaries, benefits
allowances and scheme Total

Fees  other benefits contributions emoluments

HE R RIRAEF

Name of Director ESHA e REMERN  FEZHR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAT FAET
2019 —E-NF
Non-executive Chairman FHTERE
Liu Ying 2 % - - - -
Executive Directors BTES
Hsu Feng &k M = = = -
Albert Tong o RalCl = 979 18 997
Tong Chi Kar Charles #TE = = = -
Zhao Haisheng iz pisge = = = -
Wang Fahua (resigned) FORE (BHE) - - - -
Fan Suxia (resigned) BRE(FT) - 585 12 597
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sung Tze-Chun AEZE = - - -
Independent BIFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Zhang Hong Bin ERM 132 = - 132
Sit Hing Kwok £ BB 126 = - 126
Hung Wai Lung Ricky (resigned) 3t {8 B (B E) 67 = - 67
Ng Chi Him REH 53 = - 53
378 1,564 30 1,972
No Director waived any emoluments for either W R R A BE A E = AR E T A
year. & o
No inducement was paid or payable to i NG NN =1 1 | AN NN S
Directors for joining or upon joining the MEMESENXENEANES -
Company.
The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown FRAHTESCNEERBFEEHEE
above were for their services in connection BAEEEHTIZEMNRSE M -
with the management of the affairs of the BN TES HMEERES
Group. The Independent Non-executive BEERRAIZEEHRMH -

Directors’ emoluments shown above were their
remuneration as Directors of the Company.
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13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR RHE
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE
DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EEREEM £«
E M 0 LU M E NTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBREFMAL
During the year, the five highest paid individuals RAFE - ANEE AN &= B }\/i
of the Group included three (2019: two) BE=R(CF— j\li MR)EE K
Directors whose emoluments are reflected in FZMEE RNk K;ﬁffﬁﬂlﬂgﬁfi ° BT
the analysis presented above. For the remaining ME(CE-NF =ZR)&RaFMAL
two (2019: three) highest paid individuals, & B 2 B 18 381,000,0008 7T - H
their individual emoluments do not exceed MEesFBEmT :
HK$1,000,000 each and are as follows:
2020 2019
— 7 — E _j-LEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T& T
Salaries, allowances and other %7 Bl - /& Bh & E 4 48 7
benefits 902 1,093
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE FI S 2 5K
contributions 2 D
904 1,095
Other than the Directors listed above, there was no RREFEAN B EMEEIHN  WEARD

senior management of the Company entitled to any
emoluments for either year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2020
(2019: HK$0.04 per share).

In June 2020, a dividend of HK$0.04 per share
amounting to approximately HK$104,342,000 in
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2019.

In June 2019, a dividend of HK$0.04 per share
amounting to approximately HK$104,342,000 in
aggregate was paid to shareholders as the final
dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2018.

14.

AlZEREEABWEBEFME -

B
EETERRNEE_ZT_TFE+_A=+
—BUEFEZREBRE(CE—NF :BR
0.047 7)) ©

MN-ZE_ZEF XA REEHZE %é_ﬂ$+
“A=t+—HIEFEZRBKRBEER0.045
70 (& H 49104,342,0005% 7T) T AR &R ©

REZE—NFRNADKREHZ g_)\ﬁ5+
“A=t+—HIEFEZRBKRBEER0.045
70 (& H 49104,342,0005% 7T) T AR &R ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 HZEZE T -"FTF+_HA=+—HItFE

15. SR & Fl

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2020 of HK$15,229,000 (2019: HK$111,747,000)
and on the number of 2,608,546,511 (2019:
2,608,546,511) shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there
was no dilutive ordinary share outstanding during
both years.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

BEREXRBMDIREAEEEHE

— = —
=

EFE+-_A=Z+—HLEFEAQRTERF
A A FE 5 % F15,229,000% T(Z F — h
111,747,000 L) R F A 2 B 1T R D
2,608,546,511i% (= Z — J1%F : 2,608,546,511
R E

&

HRZMEFEAYBSETAIEEIER
BRAR -

B

BRI ERIE=YiE:

16. 5% BMERR®E

Land and  Furniture and Motor
buildings equipment vehicle Total
TRET BRRRE HE am
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER

coSsT A
At 1st January, 2019 N=E—-NE—A—H 9,598 1,044 755 11,397
Exchange realignment BE = 1) = (1)
At 31st December, 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1+—H 9,598 1,043 755 11,396
Written-off s = (19) - (19)
Exchange realignment B 5 3 & = 1 = 1
At 31st December, 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H 9,598 1,025 755 11,378
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st January, 2019 N=E—-NE—A—H 5,320 1014 604 6,938
Provided for the year FREE 707 7 151 865
At 31st December, 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1+—H 6,027 1,021 755 7,803
Provided for the year ENEE 707 7 - 714
Elimination on written-off T M S B 44 8 - (18) - (18)
Exchange realignment B 5 3 & = 1 = 1
At 31st December, 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H 6,734 1,011 755 8,500
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st December, 2020 R-ZE-E&F+-A=1-—H 2,864 14 - 2,878
At 31st December, 2019 RZE-NE+-RA=+—H 3,571 22 - 3,593
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

For the land and buildings, within which carrying
value of HK$93,000 (2019: HK$108,000) are freehold
land and buildings and HK$2,771,000 (2019:
HK$3,463,000) are leasehold land and buildings. All
land and buildings are located outside Hong Kong.

Depreciation of the above property, plant and
equipment is provided to their estimated residual
value over their estimated useful lives by equal
instalments at the following rates per annum:

Buildings on freehold land 2.5%
Leasehold land and buildings 8%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The cost and carrying value of the Group’s
investment property at 31st December, 2020 and
2019 were HK$28,563,000. The investment property
is a piece of freehold land located in Macau.

The development controls of the investment property
are subject to change with reference to revised
planning directives under “Urban redevelopment
programme of the Northern District of Taipa Area”
drawn up by the Land, Public Works and Transport
Bureau of Macau in November 2013. Should the said
plan be implemented, there will be an increase in
plot ratio of the investment property. The fair value of
the Group’s investment property at 31st December,
2020 was estimated as HK$647,000,000 (2019:
HK$647,000,000).

The fair value of the investment property is
categorised as Level 3 under the fair value
measurement hierarchy. There was no transfer into
and out of Level 3 during the year. The fair value has
been arrived at using direct comparison approach
carried out by an independent valuer not connected
with the Group. The valuation was determined by
reference to comparable sales transactions with due
allowance for estimated construction costs that will
be expended to carry out the development and the
estimated developer’s profit margin. There has been
no change of the valuation technique used in the prior
year.

16. ¥ WERRKHE=

L RIEFmME - BREEE F93,0008 T
(ZZ— % : 108,000/ 7T) A iE A K A E#E
2 T RIETF - M2,771,0008 T (ZZE— 1L
F 13,463,000 ) A E L RIEF - BT
EL REFHUREERIN

L% BENRKEBZITEDIZEEG
AERFES ATINERASEIHT
At iR2HBst 2B E:

KA T F2EF 2.5%
HELHWRETF 8%
NN L] 10% £ 20%
RE 20%

REY*

KREBZREMER-_ S _TER T —
NFE+_A=Z+—BzZRARKEEAS
28,563,000/ 7T ° % 1% B ¥ % A — a6 iR
PILUK A ¥R EZ £ o

17.

ZEREMEZEREFNBELRBM LT
BERBR T —=F1+—A4lF 2(&F
JEEETEEIEFEERI B T2 LB
EIKETFARE o i Lzt 8 FAEIT
ZREMEBE MR R MR- =
ZF+-_A=+—H AEEREVEZR
(& 1 51 /&647,000,0005 7T (Z B — N 4F :
647,000,000 JT) °

REYWEZAFERAFEFESHHHE
RE=-H - FRUBYEEBAEZ=RAE
FogEd  c AFENIREAERY £
BErBIUGEEMRACEREBLAET -
ERHEDREAELRZEERS &
AAARBRZEEEXNNEEE BE
% URGAEERRAZEBRFBEMET -
FAZHERMEATFELEES o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F &

4122



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gﬂ'ﬁ'_A

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

17.

18.

Ft 7% R & Y o
—THt=

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continveq)

The highest and best use for the investment property
is development of residential property and the
Group will explore feasible plans to fully realise the
development potential of the investment property.

A=+—BiIEE
17. REWMZEz »
KEE/ B hEEREAREEED

¥ AEEBRNAGZHEANSARR
HRENEZEREN -

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R —XHEEQNTRZES
2020 2019
—E-ERE —LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T T
Cost of investment in an associate R —FREtE A& 2
& & KA 214,224 214,224
Share of post-acquisition profits, JE (5 U BB 12 )i A
net of dividends received (F0BR EH&ZHX B) 531,803 520,392
Exchange differences arising from ME— R E QA
translation of an associate EXE Z |: AR 50,449 4,634
796,476 739,250

Details of the associate of the Group at 31st
December, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

AEER-_Z_TFER_T-NF+-_A=
T—BZBERRZFBET:

Percentage of interest
in registered capital
and voting power

Form of business Place of registration Paid up indirectly held by
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
ARAEERE
T EE R AMERES
BENF AR EBERER gew BREMEAR RERELE TEXHK
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro- Limited liability company ~ Mainland China RMB370,830,000 37% Property development
electronics Port Co. Ltd. (Taiwan, Hong Kong, and investment
Macau and domestic
equity joint venture)
FERIMEFAERAR AREERA A AR #370,830,0007T NEBRERE

(RBERERRNAE)

The principal activities of the associate are property
development and investment and it is the Group’s
strategic investment in Shanghai, especially in
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong New Area. The
associate enables the Group to enhance exposure to
the property market.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R —XEENT 2R @

(Continued)

i

ZHBERR ZHBERBRIT

The summarised financial information in respect of NE
the Group’s associate is set out below:

The associate is accounted for using the equity NERE I RR A ZE AR AR A AR o
method in these consolidated financial statements.

2020 2019
=TT F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T T
Current assets mEEE
Properties held for sale FEYE 209,686 216,733
Properties under development &R AR 3 26,178 24,599
Cash and bank balances He NMIBITES 1,950,109 1,802,747
Other current assets EMmEEE 14,388 31,189
Total current assets PR E E 2,200,361 2,075,268
Non-current assets EMEE E 937,780 927,921
Current liabilities mEEE
LAT payable JE <t + 3 3 (B 7t 891,889 909,874
Other current liabilities HEtms aE 93,613 95,342
Total current liabilities rnEBaE 985,502 1,005,216
Non-current liabilities JEmEIAGE - -
Net assets BEEFE 2,152,639 1,997,973
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEEGEE QA
the associate BEEFE 796,476 739,250
Revenue WA 233,148 224,185
Profit for the year FEm A 145,517 123,760
Other comprehensive income FEAHMmE2EKRE(FAX)
(expense) for the year 123,825 (39,665)
Total comprehensive income FEEEKELTE
for the year 269,342 84,095
Dividend received from the associate & A& W HE & A 7 2 i% 8
during the year 42,430 47,271
Group’s share of results of AN E R B A A
the associate for the year ZEEHELE 53,841 45,791
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RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

—EFET_A=+—BLHEE

18. R—XEENT 2R

bt B 5 B R R B B R R A B 7S R A R
RZRBERR 2 EaREE L HK:

statements:
2020 2019
—E-sE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F& T
Net assets of the associate & NRIEEFE 2,152,639 1,997,973
Proportion of the Group's ownership 2S5 B A Bt & A &) 2
interest in the associate 7B RERE = LE 37% 37%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEREZERRZ
interest in the associate HEmEREE 796,476 739,250

19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The investments as at 31st December, 2020 and
2019 comprise:

19. %
%

HH

EE AHEMEEREZ

Z~

4

R_B_ZFR_Z-AF+-_A=+—H
ZIREBRRE:

2020 2019
—RCEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAET
Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Note (i) 2 A F{Est A H b2 M
Wk 2 AT B (K7 a£0)
— Listed equity investment (Note (i)  — b RN & (H7 52 (i) 474,816 479,762
— Unlisted equity investments (Note (i) — 3E_ETHIRAEZE
(K1 &% (i) 9,666 10,557
484,482 490,319

Notes:

(i) The above equity investments are not held for trading,
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The Directors of the Company have elected to designate
these investments as equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
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REMBHRMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

19. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Continued)

20

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The listed equity investment represents 12.547% (2019:
12.547%) of the ordinary shares of Tomson Group
Limited (“TGL”) which is a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and listed on the Stock Exchange.
Fair value of listed equity investment has been
determined with reference to quoted market price. As
at 31st December, 2020, the investment cost of the
equity investment in TGL amounted to approximately
HK$498,333,000 (2019: HK$498,333,000).

The unlisted equity investments represent investments
in private entities. The valuation techniques and
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value
is set out in Note 6 (c).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL represent securities listed

in Hong Kong,

of which HK$16,514,000 (2019:

HK$18,367,000) are denominated in RMB.

An analysis of financial assets at FVTPL at 31st
December, 2020 and 2019 by industry classification
is set out below:

19.

20.

BAFEFTAHMEZEKEZ
AT R

Hrat: (&)

(i) EmRAREREZEEEERAA(SES
B D(—XRE 5 28 S M Ak Sz I 78 5 2 P
2z AT B 212.547% (Z T —hF:
12.547%) s c 2 S EMBR AL EZ A F
BENH2EMBRENET - RZZE_FTF+
ZAZt—B REEEBZBRAREZE
& B AN #) 5498,333,00008 T (ZF — 4 :
498,333,000/ 7T ) °

FLETRAKRERRENRTLALE - BEER
FE BT 2 (B R0 R R R 3 BT 5E6(0) ©

(ii)

BEAFEFABRZUMEEETNIERES
FhZ & AR - HE516,514,0008 T (==
—JLEF 1 18,367,000/8 7T) JTh A A REESH{E o

R-ZF_ZEER_F-NF+-_A=+—8"
BAFEFABRIVBEEREBTED
BOWWT

2020 2019

—EZEF —ET-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR FAET

Real estate investment trusts EBEKREETES 16,514 18,367
Financials TER 147,429 153,253
Conglomerates A 58,629 47,865
Consumer discretionary IEMFEHEITE 2,438 3,174
Properties and construction MEREZE 899 -
225,909 222,659
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RE MWK EE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 2 — T - ZEF+_-A=+—HItFE

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities (i.e. HKD) to which

21. BE& RIBITHER

EREFRITERABRE NIA-—BEE
JIMERM SR ZE¥AIFZFERAQFME
zThe g’ (BB TT) :

they relate:
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FE T
RMB AR 6,477 12,930
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, g 7
Number of
shares Carrying value
% 17 21 B REE
HK$’000
TH&xT
At 1st January, 2019, R-ZZE-NF—HA—H8-
31st December, 2019 and —E—NF+=A
31st December, 2020 =t+—HAR=-ZE-_ZTF
+-A=+—H
- Ordinary shares with no par value — % B & 8 I 2,608,546,511 442,244

RELATED AND CONNECTED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

23.

During the year, the Group and the Company entered
into the following significant transactions with related
and connected parties:

(@) Compensation of key
management personnel

B.HAETRBEALRS

AREERARB EAFE LR ET R EEE
ATEUTEEZNRS:

(@) EEEEAEMS

The remuneration of Directors during the year AFEREESMEUNT:
was as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term benefits 5= HA TR A 1,284 1,942
Post-employment benefits RKAE T 18 30
1,302 1,972
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R B WmARMEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

23. RELATED AND CONNECTED
PARTY TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compensation of key
management personnel (continued)

Emoluments payable to the Directors of the
Company are determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) or its
committee with reference to market terms,
individual responsibilities and performance.

Sharing of administrative expense

A substantial shareholder of the Company
together with her close family members
control TGL and that substantial shareholder
has significant influence over the Company.
Accordingly, TGL is considered as a related
party of the Company. The Company has
entered into an arrangement with TGL,
pursuant to which the Group was allowed to
share the office premises and administrative
resources of TGL in Hong Kong. In return, the
Company is required to share an attributable
portion of the administrative expense of TGL
on a cost basis.

During the year ended 31st December, 2020,
the administrative expense of TGL shared
by the Company amounted to approximately
HK$4,992,000 (2019: HK$5,232,000). As at
31st December, 2020, no outstanding balance
(2019: Nil) was owed to TGL.

Under the Listing Rules, TGL is an associate
of a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction for the Company but
is exempted from disclosure and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Other payables and accruals

As at 31st December, 2020, included in
the consolidated financial statements under
other payables and accruals, an amount
of approximately HK$5,122,000 (2019:
HK$5,122,000) was due to a non-controlling
shareholder with significant influence over
a subsidiary of the Company. The amount
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

23. BEATRBEALTRS @
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MERBMETE
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24. RIEFHIEEFE
AT ARABREEE R BERENHEAE

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities

recognised by the Group and movement thereon ERERZELCEHEEEREZE):
during the current and prior reporting periods:
Undistributed
earnings of
Mainland
Tax effect China’s
on LAT associate Total
A B A
THIBER 2 BEARZ
ZHRBEHE RKDOKBF ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T THET THET
At 1st January, 2019 R-ZZE—-—hF—H—H (17,885) 23,360 5,475
Charged to consolidated statement R 4R & 18 % & 15
of profit or loss 17,548 2,201 19,749
Credited to consolidated statement 2 <t A B A9 3b {% 2
of profit or loss upon the B EFTA
Mainland China withholding tax mEBRE
paid - (2,364) (2,364)
Exchange realignment PE W A& 337 = 337
At 31st December, 2019 R-ZE—NF
+-—A=+—H - 23,197 23,197
Charged to consolidated statement 4R A 1B RN %
of profit or loss - 2,692 2,692
Credited to consolidated statement 3z 15 A7 B8 7 3, % B
of profit or loss upon the HNEABRFTA
Mainland China withholding tax mEBTR
paid - (2,121) (2,121)
At 31st December, 2020 R-ZB-ZF
—HA=+—Hd - 23,768 23,768

RSB R - N5 B R] A /R K 8E oK 2R 0% A
2 & FF A E 18 49 5118,410,0008 L (= &
— L4 : 38,975,000 7T ) ° BRI 2 5% F
TR  BMERHEERERAELEH
HEE ABRRBHEBBEEER-Z=
=FE+-A=t+—BH BBz EEY
657,000 T (ZE—NF :BHR_ZE_—
+=A=+—Hzk 212 H ~ & 18927,000
L) o b BB TERBLE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$118,410,000
(2019: HK$38,975,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$657,000 that will expire on or before 31st
December, 2023 (2019: HK$927,000 that will expire
on or before 31st December, 2022). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

(Continued)

No liability has been recognised in respect of the
amount of distributable earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the Mainland China because the
Group is in a position in control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 1st June, 2012
(the “2012 Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set
up for the primary purpose to provide incentives or
rewards to selected persons for their contribution to
the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the 2012 Scheme shall be valid and
effective till 31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such
valid period, no further options will be offered or
granted but in all other respects the provisions of the
2012 Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant
options to (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full time or part time) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; or (i) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii)
any customer of or supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or
(iv) any adviser or consultant of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (v) any person or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (vi) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

24 EEBIEBEEBE»
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25.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (coniinueq)

The maximum number of shares of the Company
in respect of which options may be granted under
the 2012 Scheme is not permitted to exceed
260,854,651 shares, being 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 3ist
December, 2020, unless shareholders’ approval of
the Company has been obtained. The total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
each participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the
Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company with
such participant and his or her associates abstaining
from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option
must be made within 28 days from the date on which
such offer is made with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1 from the grantee to the Company by way of a
consideration for the grant thereof. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not be more than 10 years
commencing from the date of grant of the option.
Save as determined by the Board and stated in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The subscription price of a share
of the Company in respect of any option that may
be granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall
determine, save that such price will not be less than
the higher of (i) closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of granting the option, which
must be a business day; and (i) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of granting
the option.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 B EZ —ZT - TF+_-A=+—HItFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the 2012 Scheme during the year
ended 31st December, 2020 and 2019. No options
were outstanding under the 2012 Scheme as at 31st
December, 2020 and 2019.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in November 2002. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
the employees are obliged to make contributions at
the specified rate under the MPF Scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represent contributions paid and payable to the
MPF Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are members
of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
government. The employer and the employees are
obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage
of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

25, IR EET &l o)
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27. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF 27. AT B I AR N R R E
FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES
COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF AT B AR MR &R
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31st December, 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+-A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T& T
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE - -
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT & 1,770 1,770
1,770 1,770
Current Assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through &2 FEFAEZRZ
profit or loss MBEE 223,331 218,425
Other receivables and prepayments £t 4t & Uk BR 3% & F8 15 3¢ 1,120 2,022
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bt BB A Rl SR IE 562,039 596,687
Cash and bank balances Be NIBITES 514,254 643,561
1,300,744 1,460,695
Current Liabilities REBEE
Accruals BIRE B 1,183 1,046
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN EPNGIE S 3,809 3,824
4,992 4,870
Net Current Assets RBEEFRE 1,295,752 1,455,825
Total Assets less Current HWEERRBAER
Liabilities 1,297,522 1,457,595
Capital and Reserves B FEE
Share capital i EN 442,244 442 244
Reserves {15 855,278 1,015,351
Total Equity 4R 5 1,297,522 1,457,595
The Company’s statement of financial position was ARARIZHBERARKER=ZE=_—F=A+
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on “HEEEZRMETRETIE  WHT 5
12th March, 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: EEREREE
Liu Ying Albert Tong
2 & = 1 [E
Chairman Director
*E EH
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27. COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF 27. KRB B RRAKRRE B
FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES (coniinueaq)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RPRI 2R EERS
RESERVES
Retained
profits
REEF
HK$’000
TE T
THE COMPANY AT
Balance at 1st January, 2019 RZE—NF-—HA—B#&#H 1,102,742
Dividend paid K 1 A% B (104,342)
Profit for the year FZ % A 16,951
Balance at 31st December, 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=+—H&#% 1,015,351
Dividend paid K A5 A% B (104,342)
Loss for the year FEEBE (55,731)
Balance at 31st December, 2020 R-ZB-_ESFE+-_A=+—H&t% 855,278
At the end of the reporting period, the Company REHR - AAR#HAEIEDIREELD
had distributable reserves of approximately 855,278,000/ 7T (ZZE —J1L4F : 1,015,351,000
HK$855,278,000 (2019: HK$1,015,351,000). BIT) °
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28. GENERAL INFORMATION OF 28. B ARl 2—REH
SUBSIDIARIES
Details of subsidiaries at 31st December, 2020 are A-_E_TFE+_A=1t—HEHMBRFZ
as follows: BT :
Paid up issued Proportion of
ordinary issued capital/
Place of share capital/ registered capital
incorporation registered and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital held by the Company activities
BRERT
EERREA/ ADABEERORER/
WEARER BRIEAES-$ 1 ZfER HAREARKRFZELE FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
=8 R #
% %
Advance Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
REREFRAT Bk 2B REZR
Celion Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 = Investment holding
EELRRES 1% REZR
Chiefast Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEXRERAA Bk 2B REZR
Crown Map International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Bk 18T REZR
Faithful Star Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Inactive
BERERERATA Bk 18T BE%
Forty Enterprises Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
EELEERATA Bk 20,0007 7T REZR
Giant Hero Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
£ 10,0003 7T REZR
Jia Feng (Macau) Companhia Limitada ~ Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Property holding
FE(RM)ERAT 3 25,0002 P9 % NEFHE
Joker Investments Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 - Investment holding
AEREBRAA Bk 20,0007 7T REEZR
Parklane Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 = Investment holding
ARBEXERATA Bk 10,0003 7T REEZR
Rivera Holdings (Macau) - Macau MOP100,000 - 60  Property development
Sociedade de Investimentos E and investment
Fomento Predial Limitada }
JIASB(RMA)BRAA A 100,000 F9 % NEERERRE
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28. GENERAL INFORMATION OF

SU BSI DlARI ES (Continued)

28. B AR Z2—RE R =

Paid up issued

Proportion of

ordinary issued capital/
Place of share capital/ registered capital
incorporation registered and voting power Principal
Name of subsidiary and operation capital  held by the Company activities
BRERA
LERRE/ KAABEERARE/
WRAREH AR EE S dAMEx TMEARREELE FEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %

Rivera Management (H.K) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of secretarial
and administrative
services 1o group
companies

IIAER(EE)ARAA BE 10,000% 7T RRHNE RITHRE
TEERT

Rivera (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of nominee
services 1o group
companies

AR B A)BRAF BB 10,000 70 RERBARET
EERA

Royton Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 = Investment holding

REEBRES 1% REER

Shine Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
securities trading

hEARAR )i 4,000,000/ 7T RERRREFEE

SOFIL - Sociedade de Fomento Macau MOP2,500,000 60 40  Property holding and

Industrial de Macau, Limitada investment

REAIRERERLA R 2,500,000 1% NERERRE

Superwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 = Investment holding

REERERAT Bk 10,0007 7T REER

IBRBEXBRAA Mainland China US$16,290,000 - 9353  Property development

(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate and investment, and
Co., Limited) (Note a) investment holding

LBRBERERAR W Za) B A it 16,290000% 7T NEERRREM
RERR

LBRRREERARAA Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 9353  Investment management

(Note b)
(W#tb) PEAL AR 50,000,007 REEE
Note a: The subsidiary is a limited liability company (Taiwan, Kiita: WHBRARA—RERBEAMKINE

Hong Kong, Macau and domestic equity joint
venture) established in the Mainland China.

REERAR(ABRERERNEGE) -
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28.

29.

B 5 ) R MY =

GENERAL INFORMATION OF
SUBSID'ARIES (Continued)

Note b: The subsidiary is a limited liability company
established in the Mainland China and solely funded
by a foreign invested enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or at
any time during the year.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD

On 18th January, 2021, Step Famous Investment
Limited (the “Offeror”) and the Company jointly issued
an announcement (the “Joint Announcement”) that
the Offeror had formally requested the Board to put
forward to the registered holders of the shares of
the Company (other than those held by the Offeror
and its concert parties (excluding Cosmos Success
Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of TGL)) (the “Scheme Shares”) a proposal for the
privatisation of the Company by the Offeror by way
of a scheme of arrangement (the “Scheme”) under
Section 673 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
involving the cancellation of the Scheme Shares,
and the withdrawal of the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The Scheme will
become effective and binding on the Company and
all registered holders of the Scheme Shares subject
to, among others, the approval of the Scheme at
a meeting of holders of the Scheme Shares to be
convened at the direction of the High Court of Hong
Kong (the “High Court”) (the “Court Meeting”) and the
sanction of the Scheme and the confirmation of the
reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
involved in the Scheme by the High Court. Terms and
conditions of the privatisation proposal have been set
out in the Joint Announcement.

As announced by the Offeror and the Company on
5th March, 2021, it is expected that (i) the scheme
document to be jointly issued by the Offeror and
the Company in relation to the Scheme will be
despatched to the shareholders of the Company on
7th June, 2021; (i) the Court Meeting will be held
on 30th June, 2021; and (i) the court hearing of
the petition to sanction the Scheme and to confirm
the reduction of the share capital of the Company
involved in the Scheme will be held on 17th August,
2021.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2020

R-DE-=F

8 25
N—= —=

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ZA&EEBEEE 2

F+=A=+—8

Investment property REY=

Approximate Estimated

Lot Gross gross Lease  Group’s Stage of date of

Description number site area floor area Use term  interest completion completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)

B ARH

w5 BRES HEEAER ALEER RE HOFH 2BE THRER MAHTAAH
(FAK) (F5K)

Nossa Senhora Do 8869 and 10032 5,255 20,500  Residential  Freehold 60% Vacant land Pending for
Carmo, S.J,, review
Taipa, Macau

RPTBE™ KT 8869110032 51255 20,500 i€ kA%#E 60% ZEEMNR BRER

Properties held for sale FEWE

Approximate

gross Lease Group’s

Description Lot number floor area Use term interest
(Sq.m.)

B& AEE

F1E WERES ALEER Bg HEOFEH 2

(FHK)

Carparks, Phase I, Lot 1 and 7,815 Car park  Long term 93.53%

Tomson Beautiful Space, Lot 3,
No. 56-156, Lane 50, 17 Jiefang,
Guang Lan Road/Long Dong Avenue, Zhangjiang

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong
People’s Republic of China New Area

REARAME ETRRHTE BRIE 7,815 Bfs =31 93.53%
KImbRER KLmb R ER
REAE /B E505F5621565 7HE IR k3K

R E_HEL
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Schedule of Principal Properties
At 31st December, 2020 R-Z -TF+-HF=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY
AN ASSOCIATE

—XBERTRFERZUE

Properties under development BREDPUWE
Gross Approximate Estimated
Lot site gross Lease  Group’s Stage of date of
Description number area floor area term interest Use completion completion
(Sq.m.) (Sq.m.)
8 B rEE st
#iE i R AER HALEER HAHFE  2E# Ag THER E A
(FHK) (FHK)
Phase Il, ZJ Legend, Lot 1, 15,335 27,603  Medium to 37% Commercial Under Note
No. 225, Chen Hui Road, 27 Jiefang, long term planning
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Zhangjiang
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Hi-Tech
People’s Republic of China Park,
Pudong
New Area
hmEARLNE BRAE 15,335 27603 RHERH 37% [ kL Wit
TETARNE RILRRH
RISHN R EERER205% B
KIBEH_H pgcpilie
Note: The development plans are still under review, the completion — A7zt : ZEREFEDERFSF @ BEELETIHLYEEE

time for this property project cannot be estimated at this

stage.

TR Z B -

Properties held for sale FEWE
Approximate
gross Lease  Group’s
Description Lot number floor area term interest Use
(Sg.m.)
A X&EH
3 wREST ALEEER HAFHE ER® Jick =
(¥HXK)
Carparks, Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 21,317 Long term 37% Carpark
Lane 825-828, Chen Hui Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong
People’s Republic of China New Area
REARLAME FETRRTE BRIE 21,317 =331 37% BfI
&L= FHx E R R B 35 825-828FF RL =R E R
RLZEREEM TEYE
Carparks, Tomson Ginkgo Garden Lot P1-P3, 44,881 Long term 37% Carpark
Lane 566, Ze Feng Road, Nangiao, 0002, 0013,
Fengxian District, Shanghai, 2002 Jiefang,
People’s Republic of China Nangiao,
Fengxian District
REARAME FETEER ZERMIEE 44,881 B 37% BfI
B8 F & 5667 0002 * 0013 *
mEHREEM 200247 51
P1-P3fC
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PROPERTIES HELD BY
AN ASSOC'ATE (Continued)

Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2020 R—_ZE-_ZF+_-_HF=+—H

—XBERTAEFRZUE

Investment properties BREYHE
Approximate
gross Lease  Group’s
Description Lot number floor area term interest Use
(Sq.m.)
BA r&H
3 wREST AREEER HOFHE ER® R#
(FHK)
Phase |, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 14,517 Medium term 37% Commercial
Port, No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
REARLAME ETRRTE BRIE 14,517 & 37% GES
5ROL = BHX B R 2 K #6905 RLEEHRE R
KILWMEFHE—H 268 112
Phase Il, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 82,457 Medium term 37% Commercial
Port, No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
REARLAME ETRRTE BRIE 82,457 & 37% GES
T = B B[R 2B K BE6905: RLEEHRE R
FOLME T8 _H 268 112
Phase |, ZJ Legend, Lot 1/6, 26 Jiefang, 26,492 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 635 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
REARLAME ETRRTE BRIE 26,492 & 37% GES
FROL = B Bl R B K 563557 RLEEHRE R
FIEF—H 268 J11/6
Phase Il B, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 29,372 Long term 37%  Residential
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 68, 69, 72, Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 828, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARAME LETERHE R R 29,372 =3 37% F=x
L= B X Bl B R 18 318287 RLEEHRE R
68 69 * 725% IR

KL HRERE=HBE
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Schedule of Principal Properties

At 31st December, 2020 R—ZE-—EF+-HA=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY
AN ASSOC'ATE (Continued)

—XBERTAFRZUE®

Investment properties (continueq) BEWEw
Approximate
gross Lease  Group’s
Description Lot number floor area term interest Use
(Sq.m.)
BA r&H
3 wREST AREEER HOFHE B iz =3
(F7HK)
Phase IV Commercial, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 6,366 Medium term 37% Commercial
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 188, Lane 238, Huo Xiang Road, Hi-Tech Park,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong New Area
Pudong New Area, Shanghali,
People’s Republic of China
REARAME FETRRFTE BRHE 6,366 o 5 37% [GES
T = B B[R B & 152387718857 ROLEEHRE R
FLmERENREE 2T
Phase IV, Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Lot 1, 27 Jiefang, 36,049 Long term 37%  Residential
No. 188, Lane 238, Huo Xiang Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghali, Pudong New Area
People’s Republic of China
REARAME LETRRFTE BRE 36,049 =31 37% £
T = B % Bl R B & 52387718857 ROLEEHRE R
5% L% k2 5% [ 70 TEYNE
Commercial-cum-office building Lot P1-P3, 11,046 Long term 37% Commercial
Lane 566, Ze Feng Road, Nangiao, 0002, 0013,
Fengxian District, Shanghai, 2002 Jiefang,
People’s Republic of China Nangiao,
Fengxian District
REARAME LETEER ZEEMRBEA 11,046 =31 37% [GES
15 HH)E 8 1K 5667 0002 * 0013 *
BAERRAKE 200241 5
P1 - P3C
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFMBHRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mEBEER
PROFIT OR LOSS

Year Ended 31st December
BE+-A=t-BHLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RF ZE—+F ZT-\f ZT-NF ZBIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET THET THET THET TER

Gross proceeds from operations & & 2 %8 633,532 140,097 219,662 181,421 109,068
Profit before taxation B 754 31 4 A 320,023 271,578 194,591 114,931 18,288
Taxation H1E (14,173) 9,743 (17,609) (3,046) (3,644)
Profit for the year FEEHRH 305,850 281,321 176,982 111,885 14,644
Attributable to: SEWT:
Owners of the Company ARREREFAEA 305,586 281,142 177,053 11,747 15,229
Non-controlling interests FEE iR R R e 264 179 (71) 138 (585)
305,850 281,321 176,982 111,885 14,644
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Five-Year Financial Summary

TFEMBHRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R &

At 31st December

R+t=A=t-8
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RF —E—+tF ZE-N\F ZZ-NE CZZ-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT FHT TER
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERHK 6,337 5,290 4,459 3,593 2,878
Investment property REME 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate R—RKEE DA
PR £ 921,610 975,284 755,406 739,250 796,476
Deferred tax assets EREREBE 15,324 16,594 17,885 - -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 556,689 776,956 - - -
Equity instruments at BOTERGA
fair value through other Hth2ERE 2
comprehensive income BATE = = 557,569 490,319 484,482
Net current assets MBEEFE 1,101,279 1,187,804 1,324,013 1,349,313 1,255,946
Total assets less BEERRDERE
current liabilities 2,629,802 2,990,491 2,687,895 2,611,038 2,568,345
Equity attributable to AREERFEA
owners of the Company R 2,566,614 2,947,204 2,655,945 2579293 2,536,254
Non-controlling interests e EL £ 10,238 11,203 8,590 8,548 8,323
2,576,852 2,958,407 2,664,535 2,587,841 2,544,577
Non-current liability ERBEE 52,950 32,084 23,360 23,197 23,768
2,629,802 2,990,491 2,687,895 2,611,038 2,568,345
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